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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
o
The Members of
The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. The Orissa Minerals
Development Company Limited (“the Company”) which com prises the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
income], statement of changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.,

in our opinion and ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Lompanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies { Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
{"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the ctate of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its losses, other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
nrovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
anprapriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial statements.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following notes on the financial statements being matters
pertaining to M/s Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited requiring emphasis
oy us. Our opinion is not modified in respect to these matters.

1. Note 14.1 (d)

Physical verification of Iron Ore at Thakurani mines and Railway Siding-1 was
conducted by an external verifier and found to be 122670.45Mt against book stock
122083.72 Mt with difference of 586.73Mt. Physical stock of Iron Ore at Railway
siding-2 could not be verified as materials are lying scattered and buried under
platform and tracks. The book balance of such material at Railway siding-2 was
brought forward from earlier years at 16998.14Mt. The entire book stock of
139081.86Mt (Thakurani mines+Railway Siding-1&2)was valued at Rs.1,39,081.86
{Le. Rel/Mt). The difference in book stock of 139081.86Mt (Thakurani
minas+Railway Siding-1&2) against i3MS stock of 142828.62Mt by 3746.76Mt
which was lost due to spillage and wastage at non-operational mines since
Dec’2009 and same was also not considered for valuation.

2. Note 14.3
Raw material stock (coal & dolomite) located at Sponge Iron Plant (closed since the

year 2010} has been valued at cost amounting to 47.41 Lakhs. Quantity of coal &
dolomite is 2764.768Mt and 8.790Mt respectively with corresponding value of Rs.
47.18 lakhs and Rs. 0.23 Lakhs. Physical verification of these raw material has been
done by an independent verifier (both quality & quantity) and no difference was
abserved.

3. Note 19.1
Unpaid dividend includes Rs. 32.34 lakhs for disputed dividend as on March 31,
2025, The Unpaid Dividend pertains to 15-16 - Rs. 4.07 Lakhs & 16-17 - Rs. 3.07
Lakhs. Unpaid dividend of 7.14 Lakhs couldn't be transferred to IEPF due to
frequent changes in signatorics to the bank (effecting KYC formalitics) where
unclaimed dividend account is maintained. The process of transfer has been
initiated with new signatories as per Board Resclution Dt, 22nd May'2025,




- SDR & Associates

iNDiIA  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

4. Note 36.1 (B)
Compensation for Excess Mining (BPMEL LEASES) Certificate Case 32/2018
(Rs.1,92,938.00 Lacs)

Out of the total claim of Odisha Govt. towards demand for BPMEL Leases along
with interest amounting Rs. 1929,38.00 Lakhs have been shown in Sl No (B) as the
cases are pending in different courts of law.

Other Matters

1. The Company has obtained balance confirmations as of March 31, 2025, from
certain sundry creditors, sundry debtors, and other parties. However, these
confirmations have not been reconciled with the corresponding balances as per the
books of accounts. Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of such balances
as reported in the financial statements remain unverified and may be subject to
adjustments upon completion of the reconciliation process. Accordingly, we are
unable to comment on the correctness of these balances.

2. As per the Secretarial Audit Report and letter issued by National Stock Exchange
the company has not complied with the composition of the board.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
Ihese matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide &
separate opinion on these matters.

We have defermined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the “Annual
Report” (as defined in CAS 720), but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Uur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information, and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

T, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 3 material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.,

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and the other accounting principles generally accepted in
india, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
recponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for cafeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and delecting frauds and other irregularities; selaction and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies: making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
crnsuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error,

I preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
a55855ing the Company’s ability to continue ac a going cancern, disclosing, ac applicable,
matters related Lo going concern and using the going concern hasis of accou nting unlessg
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Ihe Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

(ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinien. Reasanable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
iviisstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing ('SAs’), we exercise
protessional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
4150,

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud ic higher than for one raculting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrels.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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nadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone tinancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities within the Company to express an opinion on the standalone financial
statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the standalone financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Wiateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the company and such other
antitios included in the ctandalone financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors, among ather matters, the planned scaope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence; and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
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about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
s0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act
2013, we give in Annexure A, a statement cn the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

[k

We have complied with the Directions and Sub-Direction given by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the Act while conducting the audit,
and on the basis of information and explanations given to us in this regard by the
Company, we give in Annexure B to this report, a statement on the matters specified
in such Directions and Sub-Directions.

'_..p\.-"

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

B Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢; The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Change in Equity, and Statement of Cash
Flows deall with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d) tn our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind-AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e} Being a Government Company pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5
lune 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act, are not applicable to the

Company.




SDR & Associates

N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we
refer to our separate report in Annexure C: and

g) Based on our examination which include test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account however Audit trail
feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes, used
for maintenance of records by the Company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
10 us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

For SDR & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.326522E

Lo
{Mﬂ]

Partner

Place: Bhubaneswar et - M. No.314508 co15227)
Date: 17/06/2025 UDIN: 25324 so@BMLER
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ANNEXURE - A

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To THE MEEMBERS OF

THE ORISSA IVIINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

the Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we
report that:

(i} (&) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and

FEquipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets:

()  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
Management (Ref Note-27(ii) forming part of financial statements), but it
is noticed that reconciliation between the book balance and the physical
halance has not been made. Pending such reconciliation material
discrepancies, if any, has not been determined for necessary adjustment
in accounts.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the relevant records, we report that out of the total
land of 284.17 acres, only 61.795 acres are held in the name of the
Company. Out of this, 0.350 acre is under encroachment. The remaining
222.375 acres are not held in the name of the Company, of which 41.416
acres are reported to be encroached. The detailed particulars of such
immovable properties nat held in the name of the Company are provided
helow:
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Areanot | .
Description of ] Held in Name of Heid In 2 EOCroaE
Proparty Area lCumpanv{Acers] Company's || ed Area
(Acres) Name {Acres)
! (Acres)
BIRDAND | BN
COMPANY  0.76 0.76 0
BIRD .15 '
COMPANY  [3.15 | | 0
BPMELTD 215072 | |215.072 [41.416
ARAKA | N
[DENTAKAR & | |
|OTHERS 13.363 | 3.363 0 i
OMDCITD  |61.795 [61.795 | 0.35 |
SURU
BANTAKAR  0.03 b 0 I
Total  [28437 Jer79s  [222.375  Ja17ee |

Further, registration of the building of HO located at AG 104, 2™ Floor,
Sourav Abasan, Sector-ll, Salt Lake City, Kolkata =700 091 which is not yet

completed.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right to use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.,
Hence the Provisions of paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company
doesn’t hold any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, and rules made

there under;
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(i) {a@) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no
material discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory between physical inventory and book records were noticed on
physical verification.

(b)  As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned during any point of time of the year, working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets; Hence provisions of
Paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(1if) During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of lpans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships ar any other parties. Hence provisions of Paragraph 3(iii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv]) A. Section 185 of the Act regarding loans to directors is not applicable
to the Company by virtue of Notification No. G.5.R. 463(E) dated
05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt, of
India.

B. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of
Section 18b of the Act with respect to the loans, investments,
guarantee and security made.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are
deemed to be deposits. Therefore, the directives of the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Company Act 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Provisions of Paragraph

3{v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(i) According to the information and explanation given to us, the
maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central
Government under sub clause (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act
2013 and we raport that such accounts and records have been made and
maintained by the Company.

(vii) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the

basis of our examination of the records of the Company, we report that

the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees 5tate Insurance, Income Iax, Sales

Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other

statutory dues applicable to the Company with the appropriate

authorities. There were no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at
31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
hecame payable, except for the followlng cases:

Name of the Statutory Amount {Rs.)
Employee Provident Fund 18,00,551.00
Goods and Service Tax (RCM} 45,95,024.84
Tax Deducted at Source __E:SI,SEE.DD
Total 66,47.443 84

() Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the following
statutory dues referred to in clauge (a) have not been deposited on account of dispute:

SL | Name of ! Nature of Amt, in Period to which | Appealate
No | Statute Duges lakhs Amount relates | Authority
. (F.Y.)
| | Central Sales | CST(2003- STO.
| Tax Act, 1956 | 04) 444 2003-04 Tarbil
Odisha Value
Added Tax WAT{2005- Tribunal,
2 | Act2004  lo6) 245 2005-06 Cuttack
Odisha Entry Tribunal,
| 3 | Tax Act1999 | ET(2005-06) FLTT 2005-06 Cuttack
[ Odisha Entry | Tribunal,
4 | Tax Act, 1999 | ET (2006-07) 1.26 2006-07 Cuttack
Finance Service CESTAT,
5 | Act.1994 tax(2012-13) 6.29 2012-13 Kolkata
|—__ ' Proposad
| [or
| CGST/OGST | GST (2018- | Tribunal
6 |Actzolr |19 | 104.06 2018-19
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| Income Tax Assessing |
Income Tax { Refundahle to Cfficer,
Act, 1961 OMDC) 20.64 2006-07 Kolkata
FBT(Retunda Assessing
Income Tax blc 1o Oilicer,
Act, 1961 OMIDICY) 49 2006-07 Kolkata
Income Tax Assessing
Income Tax ({Relundable Officer,
Act, 1961 1o OMDC) 910.54 2007-08 Kolkata
Assessing
Income Tax Officer,
CAct, 1961 | FBT Z1.13 2008-09 Knlkata
Income Tax Assessing
Income Tax (Refundable Officer,
Act, 1961 | to OMDO) 59.11 2008-09 Kolkata
DDT(Refunda Assessing
[ncome Tax ble to Officer,
Act . 1961 OMDC)) 50 2009-10 Kolkara
| Assessing
Income Tax | Officer,
Act, |D4]1 Income Tax 84.91 Z009-10 Kuolkata
Income Tax Assessing
Incoma Tax { Befundable Otficer,
| Act, 1961 | to OMDC) 5835.80 2010-11 Kolkata
| N Asgessing
Ineome Tax OMeer,
Act, 1961 IncomeTax | 23479 2011-12 Kolkata
DOT | Assessing
Income Tax {Refundable | Officer,
Acl, 1961 to OMDC) 1.49 2012-13 Kolkam
Income Tax CIT(A)
Act , 1961 Income Tax 330.09 2012-13 Kolkala
Income Tax Assessing
[neonne Tax {Refundable ' Oilicer,
Act . 1961 1o OMDC) 294 76 2013-14 Kolkata
Assessing
Income Tax Officer,
Act , 1961 Income Tax 03.44 2016-17 Kolkata
Income Tax - | CIT(A) ,
Act, 1961 Income Tax : 21.88 2017-18 Kolkata |
MR | P e Supreme
ACT, 1957 | interest) 80,157.12 2017-18 Court
| Interest
lowards
MMDR penalty for
ACT.1957 | excess mining | 1,09.496.02
Tadal 1.00 457 00
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(wifi) According to the information explanation given to us the Company has
not made any transactions, to record in the books of account having been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the Tax
Assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 (43 of 1961)

lix) o) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interast thereon to any lender during the
vear.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit procedures, the term loans obtained by the Company have been
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

(d]  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit procedures, the Company has not utilized funds raised on short-

term basis for long-term purposes.

(e}  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit procedures, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or persan on account of or to meet the obligations of its
cubsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(%) @) According to the Information and explanation given to us the Company has
not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or further public offer
lincluding debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, provisions of
Paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

()  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of Paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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(x) (a)) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year;

(b)  According to information and explanation given to us, no report has been
filed under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and
up to the date of this report;

(c})  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has
a whistle-blower policy in place.

{ x4} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (a), (b) and (c)
of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable;

(x1il) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed

in the financial statements.

(xiv) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit procedures, though the company is required to have an internal
audit system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the same.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted internal audit for
the financial year 2024-25. Consequently, we were unable to consider the
report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that that the Company has not entered into any non cach
transaction with Directors or persons connected with him and accordingly,
the provisions of Paragraph 3{xv) of the order are not applicable to the

Company.
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(xwi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us we are of the
opinion the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A
of the Reserve bank of Indian Act 1934.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has
not conducted any non-banking financial or housing finance activities
during the year. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xvi){b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(c]  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by
the Reserve Bank of India.

(d)  According to the infarmation and explanation given to us, the Group does
not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of Paragraph 3(xvi){d) are
not applicable.

{aevir) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the recards of the company, the company has
incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 4444.89 Lacs in the current financial
yedar. However, the company has not incurred any cash losses in the
immediately preceding financial year.

\avii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the yearand
accordingly the provisions of the Paragraph 3(x)(viii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company;

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment to financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and on the basis of our knowledge
of the Board of Director and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainties exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the
Company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 1 year from the
Ralance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 10
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future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the Audit Report & we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

{xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the company, the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the company, as the company has not made profits in
the three immediately preceding financial years. Accordingly, reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

{xxi) According to information and explanations given to us Company is not
required to prepare concolidated financial statements, accordingly the
provisions of the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For SDR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 326522E

< =S
(CA 5.5. 5ahoo)
Partner

3 .314508 LBEY
UDIN. 28 31 B8og BrMLFeT

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 17/06/2025




ANNEXURE-B
TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report on the Directions by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) under
section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2024-25

Sl

% SDR & Associates

INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CAG's directions

Reply

M.

| reviewing
| chall provide a briet note on

| reasonability,

Assess the fair valuation of
all the investments, both
quoted and ungquoted, made
directly by the Company or
through Trusts, for Post
retirernent benefits of the

employees.  This  includes
varitying valuation
methodologies,  ensuring

consistency with Ind AS and
supparting
documentation. The auditor

the valuation approach, its
and
compliance with applicable
regulations, reporting any
malerial  deviations  or
misstatements.

The Company has the following post-retirement benefit
obligations:
» Gratuity— Funded with LIC under a Group Gratuity Scheme
« Provident Fund — Company contributes directly to EFFO
+ Leave Encashment — Unfunded; provisioned based on
actuarial valuation
« Half Pay Leave — Unfunded; provisioned based on actuarial
valuation

Leave Encashment & Half Pay Leave are unfunded obligations.
Provision has heen made in the books based on independent
acludrial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method
{PUCM), as prescribed under Ind A5 19

As these benefits are not backed by any specific investments, no
fair valuation of investments is applicable.

The Company has subscribed to a Group Gratuity Scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation (LIC). Contributions are made annually as
par the actuarial wvaluation report provided by LIC. The

| investments relating to the Gratuity Fund are managed by LIC, and
' the Company does not have direct control or vicihility over the
| underlying assets or valuation methodology. Since LIC manages

the funds under a poaled arrangament, specific fair valuation of
investments is not avallable, However, reliance is placed on LICs
valuation and solvency, which is a generally accepted practice
under Ind AS 19,

PF contributions are compliant with EPF Act, 1952, and no
separate brust exists.

Whether the company has
system in place to process all
the accounting tranzactions
through IT system? IF yes,
the implications of
processing of accounting

Yes, all the accounting transactions are accounted for through IT
System, However, as explained to wus, there are
operations/transactions which take place nutside the system but
have a bearing on the accounts of the Company,

As per past practice, all transactions are manually entered in the

software which maintains regular books of account.
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INDI

| transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of
the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

As per existing practice, there are chances of some aforesaid
transactions being missed to be accounted as the flow of
accounting transactions are not automated at the point of
generation of transaction. The financial implications of
transactions outside the IT system are unascertainable.

Further the Audit trail feature was not enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of

Whether funds
{grants/subsidy ote.)
| received/receivable for
| epecific schemes  from

Centralfstate  Government
or its agencies were properly
accounted for as per the
i applicable accounting
standards or norms and

were utilized as per its term
| and conditions? Whether

ACCounting of interest

| zarned on grants received

has been done as per terms

and conditions of the
Grants. List the cases of
devialion.

whothor the received funcs .

As explained to us and on the basis of information available, the |
Cempany has not received any funds from Central/State agencies.

1

| Whether the Company has
|identified the key Risk
| areas? If yes, whether the
|C|:|mpﬁn1,r has tormulated
| any Rick Managemant Policy
| ta mitigate these risks? If
yes, (a) Whether the Risk

i Management Policy has
been formulated
considering  plobal  best

| practices? (b} whether the
Company has identified its

data assets and whether it |

has been valued

appropriately?

Yes, the Company has identified key risk areas and has formulated
a comprehensive Risk Management Policy to mitigate those risks.

{a) Yes, the policy incorporates globally recognized best
practicas

{b) As of now, the Company has not formally identified it's
data assets.




| SEBI,
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Whether the Company is |

complying with the
Securities and Exchange
Goard of India {SCBI) (Listing
Ohligation and Disclosure
Keguirements) Regulations,
2015, and other applicable
rules and regulations of
Department of
Investment and Public Asset
Management, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs,
Departn'.ent of
Enterprizes, Reserve Bank of
lndia, Telecom Regulatory
Authority of India, CERT-IN.
Ministry of Electronics and
Infarmation Technology and
national Payments
Corparation of India

| wherever applicable? If not,

the cases of deviation may
be highlighted.

Pulslie |

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulation
2015-Complied except as mentioned below

2 |

. SEBI Regulation | Deviations | Details of Violation
| Regulatinns MNao.
| Compliance
| Requiremen
|t
Raaulation Regulation Delay in Delay in Adoption
33 of SEBI 33 Adoption of | of audited financial
LODR audited results for the
Regulations financial guarter ended 31st
2015 results for the | March 2024,
quarter |
ended 31st
March 2024.
Regulation Regulatian Delay in Delay in Adoption
22 ot SERI 33 Adeption of | of audited financial
LODR audited results far the
Hegulations financial gquarter ended 30
2015 results for the 06-2024
quarter
| ended 30th
" | dune 2024,
Regulation Regulation Delay in Delay in Adoption
23 of SER 33 Adoption of | of audited financial
LODR audited results for the
Regulations fimancial | gquarter ended 20th
2015 results for the | Seplember 2024
quarter |
ended 30th | |
September i
2024. | -
| Regulation Regulation | Compaosition Insufficient
| 1711}, 20 of . 17(1), 20 of Board and Independent
SEBI LODR Stakeholder Director
Rezulations Relationship
2015 Committee
for Quarter
ended A0th
June 2024,
Regulation | Regulation | Composition Insufficient |
17{1) of SEBI 17(1) of Board for Independent {
_ LODR the Quarter Director 5
Repulations ended 30th
2015 September
2024,
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Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 17/06/2025

Regulation
17(1},
17{24),

21(2) of SEB
LODR

Regulations
2015

' 18(1), 19, 20, |

Regulation | Composition | Insufficient
17(1), | of Board, Independant
17(24), Audit Director
18{1), 19, Committee,

20, 21(2) Momination

and
Remuneration
Commitles,
Risk
Management
Committee.

b) Department of Investment and Public Asset Management-
Camplied.

¢] Ministry of Corporate Affairs- Complied

d) Department of Public Enterprises Complied.

e) Reserve Bank of India- Not Applicable

f) Telecom Regulatory Authority of India- Not Applicable.

g} CERT-IN- Not Applicable.

h) Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology- Not
Applicable,

i} Mational Paym:_-h_ig Corporation of India- Not Applicable.

*| Bhubaneswar) «

S

For SDR & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 326522E

(CA S.5. Sahoo)
Partner

Memb. No.314508 :
UDIN: 25314 so8 BMLERT 6884
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ANNEXURE- C
TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To THE MEMBERS OF
THE Orissa WMhineraLs DeveLormenT ComMpany LIMITED

tReferred to in paragraph 3 (f) under head Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of the Auditors’ Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub —sections 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

wWe have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Orissa
iviinerals Development Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31% mMarch, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal
Financial Controls based on the internal control over Financial Reporting criteria
gstablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
Internal Financial Controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
sateguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
Financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repaorting (the
“Guidance MNote”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
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an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting was established and maintained and
it such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included
obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
orror. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system
aver Financial Reporting.

ivieaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statement for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1} Pertain to the maintenance of the records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

!l Provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to
nermit preparation of standalone financial statement in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of
company; and

I Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the standalone financial statement.
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inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

Because of inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluations of the internal financial control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Uualified Opinion

fccording to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weakness has been identified as at 31 March 2025.

1. The Company does not have adequate internal control system to record Property,
Plant & Cquipment and Intangible Assets in Fixed Asset Register showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets and
reconciliation between the book balance and the physica! balance of PPE. This
could prevent timely identification of shortage/theft or pilferage of obsolete and
unserviceable items which may ultimately cause financial loss to the Company.

2. The Company does not have an adequate internal financial control system
commensurate with the size and nature of its cperations in respect of budgetary
controls. The Company has not formulated or implemented an Annual Budget to
maonitor and control it expenditure. The absence of such a budgeting process may
weaken the Company’s ability to track variances, manage resources efficiently, and

ensure financial discipline.

3. The Company does not have an adeguate internal control system for inventory
management, particularly in reconciling stock records with physical verification and

statutory filings.




Opinion
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In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weakness described
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria the Company has, in all
matarial racpacts, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 17/06/2025

For SDR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 326522F

<. —
{CA S.S. Sahoo)
Partner

Memb. No.314508
UDIN: 2 5314502 BMLIRT 6384



THE DRIS5A MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Balanece Sheet Ac at 31-03-2025

Aty i lahbs
Motes Asat 31-03-2025 As ot 1103-2024
ASSETS
{1} Non-Currant Assets
[a) Property, Plant and Eguipment 6.1 1,286.90 1,ITLEe7
(b} Capital Werk-in-Progress 8.2 11,107.87 46.17
5] Intangibbe Assets T 1,237.25 1,496.32
{d} Financial Assets
() finvestments
{A) Investments in Jolmt Ventwres 81 - -
(B} Other Investments 82 242 242
Trade Receivabies 9 0EF 0.67
ioans and Advances 10 2547 3145
Othar Financial Assats 1 3.407.42 .
{e] Deferred tax assats [Net) 21 19,529.00 18,710,939
if Non-Current Tax Assets (Net] 13C . -
—|gl __ OtherMNon-current Assats —— I .5 — . =
Tetal Non-current Azsets 36,597.50 21,560,189
{2} Current Assats
(&) Inventares 14 2,806.75 2,378.28
L]} Finencial Assets
nvestment =
Trade Receivables 9 . -
Cash and cash Equivaients 158 5, 244.59 460,58
Bank Balgnces other than (1) above 158 T.15 201189
Loans and Advences - - -
Other Financial Assets 11 31134 406,70
(e Current Tax Assets 13C 5,22.37 4,521,238
id]  Other Currant Assets 128 1,057.78 1,534.33
= Total Current Assets 7,170,038 12, 613.06
Total Assets 53,747.53 34.173.75
EQUITY AND LIBILITIES
(1} ECQUITY AND LIBILITIES
[E Equity Share capital 16 60,000 60.00
(5]} Oiver Eguity 17 {5217.83] {1;153,92)
fotal bquity 15157, 81) [E073.52)
() Uabilities
Mon-Current Elakilities:-
@) Financlal Liabilities
Lease LialsiFities 20C} 13848 .55
!nrruw]np- lEI:A!I 1r794:88 =
Trade payabies F =
(8] Total outstanding duss of Micro ENEFPFSEs an0 srall antorprises;
{B) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises =
{iv) Other Flnancial Uabillties [other than those specified In item (b)) : : -
L] Provisigns wa f29.24 550.55
(e} Deferred Tax Liakilitios (Net) =
[} Other Mon Current Liabilities . =
Total Mon-Currant Liabilties 1856638 836,501
Current Linbilities:-
ial Financial Liabilitics
Lease Liabilitics Z0[0) 65700 59045
Horrowings; La(e) = =
Irade payabie;
Total eutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
L] 18(¢) . -
{8y 181 180,24 222,50
Other Financial Liahilities 13 d453.04 1,558.13
3] Oither Currant Liabilities 22 27,759,848 25.414.47
{ch Proviglone MR L.307,36 b22.T2
(21 Cureant Tau Liahilitiae 13 - .
Total Curreiit Lialiliches S = AQ,I56.90 FATRET
Total Liabilitios 58,925.34 35,247 17
Tatal Equity and Liahilitias 53,767.53 34,173.25

Accompanying acoounling policies and notes forms ntegral part to the Tnenclal statemants

A5 prer alir report of avan date atlached
For S0OR & Assoclates,

Charicred Accountants

FRMN Ko 328522

ek

[5:5. Bahoo, FOA]
Fariner

M. Mo 254500
uom: 5 5314 508 BMLES T &E2Y
Piace: Bhubaneawar

Dated: 17.06.2023 i id i

For & On Bohalf of Board of Directors

O A

mlanaging Mrector

Chairman

(Arinsam Waira)
cr

R LR

pe

[Pty Kumar Biswsal]
Company Secretary




THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and loss For the Year Ended 31-03-2025

Amt, In lakhs
For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Notes
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
| |Total Revenue
[a)] lrcome from Operation 23 A 6,461.59 B227.92
{b}{Other income 238 638.58 710,20
Total Revenue (1) 7,100.17 8,938.12
Il |EXPENSES:-
{a) |Changes in invenlories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (418.18) {195.03)
(b} |Employes benefit expansas 25 2,399,566 2,348.63
(cy |Finance Cost 25 2,241.12 3,061.08
id} |Depreciation & amortisation expenses and Impairment Losses 27 391.76 487 48
{13|Property Plant and Equipment - Deapraciation 38.83 40.48
(2} intangible Fixed Assets - Amortisatien 35.92 168,14
(I amartization of CWIP . 158 86
{4ilhmpaimment Losses Mining Rights 317.01 -
(e |Other expenses 28 1T 3,706,814
Total expenses (1) 11,4057 9. 45900
I [Profit/ (Loss) befora exceptional itema and tax (1 - 1) [4,840.40) 1530.88)
Exceptional Nerms(Pravision Witlen Back) 231 5 =
Iv |Profit! (Loss) before tax (4,840.40) (530.88)
vV |Tax expense
{1 Curment Tax 28
{2} Deferred Tax 28 {S81B.01) (812.79)
Total Tax expense (V) [B18.01) [(512.79)
vl |Profit f {Loss) aftor tax for the peried (IV - V) (4,022.29) 28181
Vil [Cther Comprehensive Income
{A}|ltems that will not be recycled o profit or loss
(il) Remeasurement gains ! (losses) on defined bensfit plans az (A3.18) (102.10)
Ineama tax ralating ta items that will nat be realagaifiad to prafit ar lage 29.3 21.63 2655
vin |Total Other Gomprehensive Income (51.55) {75.55)
IX Total comprehensive income for the period (VI + VII) (4,083.94) 2058.35
¥ |Eamings par equity share:
Basic and Diluted Esmings Per Share (Face Value Re-1/- per ghara.) a4 (6704} 4.70

As per our report of even date attached.

For SDR & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
FRHN Mw.326522E

=y

(S.5. Sahoo, FCA)
Pariner

M. No.314508
UDIN: 2.2 314 <pR BMFLYT LE%Y
Place: Bhubansswar

Dated: 17.06.2015

Accompanying aceounting palicies and notes ferms integral part to the financial statements

For & On Behall of Board of Directors

Chairman

hsfortede

[Arindam Maitra)
CFO

Managing Director

P

[Pintu Kumar Biswal)
Company Secretary

0.



The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended 31-03-2025

Amount in Rs. Iakhs
Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31-03-2025 31-03-2024
A. Cash llows from operating activities
Profit for the period (4,022.39) 281,91
Adjustments for;
Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss (B18.01) (B12.79)
Interest income recognised in profit or loss (201.67) {371.94)
Interest on Borrowings 2,241.12 3.061.08
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 391.76 487.48
(2,409.20) Z,645.74
Movements in working capital:
{Increase) / decrease in inventories (428.47) (196.21)
{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables - -
{Increase) / decrease in loans and other fMinancial asseat (3,506.12) (5.39)
{Increase) / decrease in other assets (223.46) 611.90
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (42.22) [(96.77)
Increase / (decrease) In other financial Habilities 4585.44 {249.69)
Increase / (deerease) in other liabilities 20,063.45 (5,789.78)
Increase / (decresse) in provisions 3,009.97 A87.40
Cash {(used In) / genorated from operations 17,049.40 {2, 592.80)
Income taxes paid [{21.09) {0.93)
Met cosh (used in) / generated by operating activities 17,028.31 {2,593.73)
B8, Cash flows from investing actlvities
Payment for purchase of financial assets = =
Procesds an sale of financial assets 2.004 74 5.310.73
Interest roceived from banks and others 201.67 203.44
Payments for property, plant and equipment (11,115.74) ({15.24)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment - -
Payments for intangible assets (93.85] (28.99)
MNet cash generated by investing activities (9,003.17) 5.469.94

€. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest on Borrowings (2,291.12) {3,061.08)
Dividends paid on equity shares = a3
Tax on dividends paid on equity shares = %

Mot each (usad in) finaneing activities (2,241.12) (3.061.08)
Mot increase or [decraace) in cach ar cash eguivalants 5,784.01 (184.87)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year AGD.58 GA5.45
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year 6,244.59 460.58

Accompanying accounting policies and notes forms integral part to the financial statemernts

Mate:
a) Cash and eash equivalent under current financial asset at note no.15A are cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of
drawing eash flow statement. Therefore reconciliation statemont roquired undar para 45 of Ind AS 7 is not required.

b} Figures in the brackets are cash outflow/inflow as the case may be,

Ag per our report of even date attached. For & On Behall of Board of Directors
For S50R & Associates. -
Chartarad Asssuntantis
FRN Ha, 326522E qu_ﬂf
(A Eaxena) ssudha Chandr lesl}
‘g | P | | Chalrman Managing Director
(8.8. Sahoo, ECA) los o afhe M
Parinor i
M. W 314508 {Arindam Maitra) (Pintu Kumar Biswal)
UBiN: 2 5314 SOREMFL CFO Company Secretary

Flace: Bhubanoswar
Dated: 17.06.2025




A, Equity share capital

The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Statement of changes in equity As at 31-03-2025

Amounlt in Rs. lakhs

Balance as at 01.04.2024 60.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31-03-2025 60.00
B. Other equity
) Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Reserves and surplus Total
General reserve  Retained earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2024 32,474,235 (33,608.27) £1,133.92)
Accretion  Decretion in P & L e = =
Profit for the year - {4,022.39) {4,022.38)
Other comprehensive income, net of Income tax - {61 55) (B1.58)
Total comprehensive income £ (4,083.94) (4,083.94)
Paymen! of dividend . = = -
Appropriation to reserves = = =
Balance as at 31-03-2025 {37.,692.21) {5.217_8BB)
MNote:

(i} Re-measurement of defined benefit plan and fair value changes relating o own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at
falr value through profit or loss shall be recognised as a part of retained earning with separate disclosure of such items alongwith
the relevant amounts in the Notes.

(i} A description of the purposes of the sach reserve within equity shall be disclosed in the Notes.




THE ORISSA MINERALS
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Ind-AS Accounting Policies




1, General
Information

2. Application  of
new and revised
Ind AS

3. Statement of
compliance

4, Significant
accounting
policles

4.1Basis of
preparation and
presentation

The Orizsa Minerals Development Company Limited (herdinafter referred to as "OMDE"
or the "Company") was Incorporated on 16M August, 1918, Tt was Nationalized by the
Government of India by virtue of the Bird & Company Ltd (Acquisition and Transfer of
undertaking and other properties) Act, 1980 (Act No: 67 of 1980) in the year 1980, It
became a Schedule-B PSU w.e,f 19" March, 2010, as a subsidiary of EIL, which alsa
become PSU an 19" March, 2010,

Eastern Investment Limited (EIL) became a subsidiary of RINL [Rashtriya Ispat Nigam
Limited) on 5™ January, 2011.

The company |s listed at Calcutta stock exchange (CSE), National Stock Exchange
{NSE)} and got trading permission to trade under permitted category in Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE).

OMDC |s In possession of three mines namely Belkundl Iron and Manganese Mines,
Baglabury Iron Mines and Bhadrasal Iron and Manganese Ming at Barbil in the district
of Keonjhar, Odisa.

OMDC earller gperated three mines of BFMEL under Power of Attorney namely Dalki
Manganese Mines, Kolha Rolda Iron & Manganese mines, Thakurani Iron and
Manganese Mines.

Presently aut of the three OMDC mines, Bagiaburu Iron mine is in operation. The other
two mines of GMDC are inoperative due to non-availabllity of Forest and Environment
clearance. The Company is (n process of getting the required clearances.

Mo new Ind ASs were intreduced or ne revision to any existing Ind ASs has been made
before 31 March, 2017,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified
under the Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Up to the year ended 31 March, 2015, the Company preparad Its financial statements
in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which incudes Standards
notified under the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014. These are the
Company's first Ind AS financial statements, The date of transition to Ind AS Is 1 April,
2015. Refer MNote 4.16 for the detalls of first- time adoption exemptions availed by the
Company.

The financial statements of the Company have bean prepared in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Companles Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
FII'E‘S‘CI'iﬂEd under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013,

Prior to adoption of Ind AS, the Company had been preparing its financial staterments
far all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (n the Indla, Including accounting standards
specified under Section 132 of the Companles Act, 2013, read with Bule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAPY). These financial statements for
yrar anded 31 March I017 are the Company’s. first financial statements prepared in
atcordance with Ind ASs,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per
Company's aperating cyele and other eriterda s2t out in Schedule-I11 of the Companies
Ack 2012, Based on the nature of business, the Company has ascerlained |ls operaling
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of Current-noncurrent classification of assets and
llapinties.,




4,2 Property, Plant
and Equipment

The Company has adopted all the Issued Ind ASs and such adoption was carried out In
accordance with Ind AS 101- First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The
Company has transited from Indlan GAAP which |5 its previous GAAP, as defined In Ind
AS 101,

The effect on reperted financial position and financlal performance of the Company on
transition to Ind AS has been provided in Nate 37 of Ind AS Upening Balance Sheet as
on April 01, 2015, which also Includes reconciliations of total equity and total
comprehensive income for comparative years under Indian GAAP to those reported for
respective yvears under Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on histarical cost hasis, except for
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below,

Historical cost Is generally based on the fair value of the consideralion given in
exchange for goods and services,

Fair value |5 the price that would be received to sall an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction betweasn market participants at the measurement
date; regardless of whaether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuatlon technique, In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liabliity, the
Company takes Into account the characteristics of the asset or lablfity It market
participants would take those characteristics inta account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosures in
these financial statements Is determined on such a basis, except for share based
payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share basad
Payments, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 - Leases, and
measuraments that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable valug In Ind AS 2 - Inventories or wvalue in use in Ind AS 36 -
Impairment of Assets,

In addition, for financial reparting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inpute to the fair wvalue
measurements arg observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ks entireby, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical
assets or llabilitles that the Company can access at the maasurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are obsarvable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset ar fiability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Property, plant and equipment held for use In the production or/ and supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost,
lece  any subseguent accumulated depreciation and  subsequent accumulated
impairmeant lossas.

Initial Measurement
The Initial cost at cash price equivalent of property, plant and egquipment acguired

comprises Its purchase price, including import duties and nan-refundable purchase
taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to lts working condition and
location and present walue of any asset restoration obligatlon ar obligatory
decommissioning costs for its intendad use.

Expenditure incurred on development of freehold land is capitalized as part of the cast
of the land.




In case of salf-constructed assets, cost includes the coste of all materiale used in
construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable berrowing
costs,

Subsequent expenditure

Subseguent expenditure on day- to- day servicing of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised In profit or loss as Incurred. However, axpenditure on major
maiftenance or repairs including cost of replacing the parts of assets and averhaul
costs where it |g probable that future ecanomie benefits assoclated with the (tem will
be available to the Company, are capitallsed and the carrying amount of the item so
replaced |s derecognised,

Insurance spares thal are specific to a fixed asset and valuing more than Rs, 1 lakh
per unit are capitalised along with the main assets. All other spares are recognised as
inventary, except far spares which are having a useful life greatar than a year and can
to be |dantified as components In an aseet are capitalised,

Capital work-in-progress

Assets In the course of construction for production or/and supply of goods or services
or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are Included under
capital work In progress and are carried at cost, less any recognised impalrment
loss.Cost includes professional fees and for qualifying asset, borrowings costs
capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such capital work in
progress, Is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipmant
when comploted ar starts aperating as per management's intended use,

Costs associated with the commisslioning of an asset are capitalised where the asset 5
available for use but Incapable of operating at pormal levels until a period of
commissioning has been completed.

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets are provided over their estimataed wseful lives or, in the case of
leased assats (including leasehold Improvemeants), over the lease term if shorter, The
lease period is considered by excluding any lease renewals options, unless the
renewals are reasonably certain, Depreciation on assets are provided on a stralght line
basis over the vseful life of the asset in the manner prescribed under Schedule 11 of
the Companles Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at @ach year end, with the
effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Each
component of an iterm of property, plant and equipment with 2 cest that is significant
In relation to the total cost of that ltem |s depreciated separately If its useful life differs
from the others components of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment which are subject to componentisation, comprises of
maln assets, componentised acsets and remainders, If any. The usaful lifo of
ramainders carry the life of main assets unless the same based on technical evaluation
is considered to be lower than that of the main asset, In which case, such lower useful
life |s considered.

The residual value of property, plant and squipment are rmaintained &t 5% of the
origingl cast.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equlpmant is
prospectively depreciated over the revised useful life of respective assets.

Thea estimated range of u=eful lives are as follows: Yoars
Buildingz 30-60

Piant and machinery &-10




4.3
Assets

Intangible

Railway Siding 15

Mator Vehicles 2
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3- 10

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciated assets on property, plant and eguipment and accumulated depreciation
thereon are retained fully until they are derecognised or classified as non-current
assets held for sale.

Disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal o when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
&ny gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and |5 recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss.

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all Its property, plant and eguipment recognized as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as
of the transition date

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets having finite useful life are
amortised over their estimated useful lives/unit-of-preduction basis over the total
estimated remaining commereial reserves of mining property. The estimated useful life
and amaortlsation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
with the effect of any changes In estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Mining Rights

The costs af mining rights Includes amounts pald for afforestation and wild [ife
conservation as determined by the regulatory authoritlies are capitalised as "Mining
rgnts’ in the year n which they are mncurred. Cost of pre-production pnimary
development expenditure other than fand, buildings, plant and eguipment are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining property until the mining property s
capable of commercial production, Capitalised mining properties are amortised on a
unit-of-production basis owver the total estimated remaining commercial reserves of
mining preperty and are subject to impairment review.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains ar losses arnsing from derecognition of an
intangibla ascet, measured as the differance batween the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amaunt af the aseat ara recagnized in the skatement af prafit and lass

when the asset is deracognised.

Amortisation
The estimated useful lives far the main categories of Intangibles assets having finite
usaful life are as follows:

{a) Acquired eomputer software are classified as intangible assets and carries a

useful |Ife of 4 years.

{b) Mining Rights are treated as Intangible Assets and all related costs thereof are
amortized using the unit of production basis over the Commercial recoverable
rEeserves.




4.4 Impairment

4.5Investments in
joint ventures

4.6 Provisions
and
contingencies

In case of Mining Rights are not renewed, the balance related cost paid s
charged to revenue in the year of decision of non-renewal,

Acquisition Cost l.e cost associated with acquisition of licenses, and rights to
explore including related professional fees, payment towards statutory forestry
clearances as and when incurred are treated as addition to the Mining rights

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transitian to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all [ts intangible assets recognized as of 1 April, 2015 {transition date) measured as
paer the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its desmed cost as of the
transition date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reparting perind, the Company ravigws the earrving smounts of its
tanglbla and intangible assets tn determine whether there is any indication that thoae
assets have suffered an impairment |ess, I any such Indicetion exists; the recoverable
amount of the asset Is estimaled In order Lo determine the extent of the Impairment
Ioss (If anmy). Where it i5 not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
indlvidual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in usa. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
walue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecks current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-genarating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and |oss.

Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying ameunt of the asset {or
cash-generating unit} is increased to tho revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the (ncreased carrylng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no Impairment loss been recognised for the asset {ar
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immeadiately in the statementof profit and lass.

A joint wenture is a joint arrangement whereby the partios that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights te the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint contrel
Is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisians about the relevant activities reauire unanimous consent of the parties
sharing contral.

Investment in joint ventures are accountad for at cost,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there Is a present ohligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it Is probable (*more likely than not™) that it is required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognisad as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, Where a provisien is measured
using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount Is
the present value of those cash fiows. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money in that jurisdiction




4.7 Leasing

and the risks specific to the llability.

(a) Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning
An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
arlses when environmental disturbance is caused by the development or
ongoing production of a mine and other manufacturing facllities. Such costs,
discounted to net present value, are provided for and a corresponding amount
is capitalised at the start of each project, as soon as the obligation to incur
such costs arises, These costs are charged to the statement of profit or foss
over the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the
unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost estimates are reviewed
periodically and are adiusted to reflect known developments which may have
an impact on the cost estimates or life of operations. The cost of the related
ascet is:adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated
cost estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance and revisions
to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset js depreciated prospectively
over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the
discount Is shown as finance and other cest in the statements of profit or loss.

(b} Environmental liabilities
Environment liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes obliged,
legally or constructively to rectify environmental damage er parform
remediation work:

{c) Litigation
Frovision s recognised once it has been established that the Company has a
present obligation based on consideration of the information which becomes
available up to the date on which the Company's financial statements are
finalised and may In soma cases entail sesking expert advice in making the
determination on whether therae Is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities ansing from past events the existence of which would be
confirmed only on octcurrence or non-gocurrence of one or more future uncertaln
events not wholly within the control of the Company or corntingent liabilities where
thara ie a present abligatione but it is nat probable that aconemic banefits would bea
required to settle the ohligations are disclosed in the financial statements unless the
possibility of any outflow in settlement (s remote.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement, but are disclosed
where an inflow of econemic benefits is probable.

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either & finance lease
or an operating lease, based on the substance of the [ease arrangement.

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from |essees under finance leases are recognised as recelvables at the
amount of tha Company's net investmaent in the leases. Finance leasa incoma ic
allocated to accounting periods so as to refiect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Company's net investment outstanding In respect of the |eases,

Rental Income from operating leases is recognised on & straight-ling Dasis over the
term of the relevant lease. [nitial direct costs incdrred In negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the |eased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

he C Besee




4.8 Inventories

4.0 Tradea

receivable

4.10 Financial
Instruments

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at
their fair walue at the inception of tha lpase or, if lower, at the precent value of the
minimum lease payments, The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation,

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
lizhility. Finance expenses ara recognised immaedistaly in prafit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitallsed |n
accordance with the Company's general policy on bgrrowing costs, Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses (n the periods In which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-ling basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rantals arising under operating leases are recogniced as an expense n the
period in which thaey are incurred.

In the event that lease Incentives are recelved to enter into egperating leases; such
Incentives are recognised as a labllity, The aggregate benefit of Incentives |s
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is meore representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits fram the leased asset are consumed.

Inventory of raw material, stores and spares are valued at cost net of CENVAT/ VAT
credit wherever applicable. Cost is determined on moving welahted average price on
real time basis.

Inventories of finished goods, semi-finished goods and work In process are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost Is generally detarmined at first in first out
basis {FIFD) and includes appropriate share of labour and ralated overheads. MNet
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the erdinary course of business less
estimated cost necessary o make the sale.

MNet realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable
value s taken as per the [atest available price provided by 1BM.

Provision |z made for old/ obsolete/ surplus/ non- maving Inventories as well as ather
anticipated losses considered wherever necessary.

Where physical stock is moare than the book stock, book stock s considered for
valuation of stock. However, surplus stock is valued at Re. 1 per LOT for the surplus
stock available as on the date of closing.

The statutory duties and levies payable on closing stock of finished goods at the time
of sale is not considered In valuation of closing stock,

Trade racaivables are amounts due from rcustomers for goods sold or serviees
perfarmed In the ardinary course of business, IF collection is expect ta be collacted
within a pericd of 12 months or less from the reportlng date {or in the normal
cperating cycle of the business IT longer), they are classified &5 CUlrent B5sels
ctherwise as non-current assets,

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a
significant financing componant in accordance with Ind AS 18 {or when the entity
applies the practical expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract,

Loss allowance for expected |ife time credit loss is recognised on initial recognition,
All financial assets are recognised on trade date when the purchase of a financial asset

Is under a contract whose term reguires delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the rkat concerned, Financial assets are initially




measured at falr value; plus transactlon costs, except for those financlal assets which
are classified as at falr value through profit or less (FWTPL) at inception. All recognised
financlal assets are subsequently measured In their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value,

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified as "squity instrument’ if it is' a non-derivative and meets
the definition of ‘equity’ for the {ssuer (under Ind AS 32 Fnancial Instruments:
FPresentation). All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘debl Instruments’,

Financial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method
Debt instriments are measured at amaortised cost if both of the follnwing conditinons
are mak:

+ the asset is held within a business model whose chjective is to hold assats in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

+  the contractual terms of the instrument alve rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principat
amount cutstanding,

Debt instruments meeting these criterda are measured initially at fair value plus
transactlon cCosts. TI'IE',,I' are SUDSE'qL!EHtI"-' measured at amortised cost usmg the
effective Interest method less any Impairment, with interest recognised on an effective
vield basis in Investment income.

Financial acsetc at fair value through other comprehencive incoma{FYTOCI)
Pabt instruments are measured at FYTOCT if both of the fellowing conditions are met:

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objectiva (s to hold assets In
arder to collect contractual cash flows and selling assets; and

= the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates te cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments meeting these criterla are measured initlally at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains ar
losges aricing on remeasuremeant recognised in other comprehancive (ncoma, except
for Impairmant gaine or lesses and foreign exchange gaine or lossas. Interaszk
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of prafit
and less In Investment Income. When the debt Instrument is derecognised the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised |n other comprehensive income |s
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss account as a reclassification
adjustment.

At Initial recognition, an irrevecable election |5 made {on an Instrument-by-Instrumeant
hasis) to designate investments in equity instruments other than held far trading
purpase at FYTOCT,

A financial asset Is held for trading If,

= it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling It In the near term;
or

= on initlal recognition It is part of a portfolio of dentified financlal Instruments
that the Company manages together and has evidence of a recent actual
pattern of shart-term profit-taking; or

*« [ Is 2 derivative that |s not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument
or a financlal guarantee.




Investrments in equity instruments at FYTOCT are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, Subseguently, they are measured at fair value with gains and (osses
arising frum changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated In the Investments revaluation reserve, Where the asset |5 disposed of,
the cumulative galn or loss previously accumidlated In the investmeants revaluation
reserve |s directly reclassified to retained earnings.

For equily instruments measured at falr value through other comprehensive income no
Impalrments ara recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Lividends on these Investments in equity instruments are recognised In the statement
of profit and loss in investment income when the Company's right o receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that tha economic benefite associated with tha
dividend will flow to the antity: and the amount of the dividend ran be measurcd
rEFiabE'f-

Financial assets at FYTFL

Financlal assets that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive incomedescribed above, or that meet the criterla
but the entity has chosen to designate as at FYTPL at initial recognition, are measured

at FVTPL.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FWTPL, unless the Company
designates an [nvestnrent that is not held Tor trading at FYTOCT at initial recognition.

Financlal assets classified at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value excluding
transactinn rosts,

Financial asseta at FVTPL are subsequantly measured at fair value, with any gains er
losses arising on remeasurement recegnised In the statement of profit and loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and |10ss 15 Included in the “ather
gains and losses’ line item.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL is Included in the net gain or loss
described abova,

Dividend Income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss In investment income when the Company’s right to recelve
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits assoclated with
th{: ng:lvldand will flow to the entity; and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Trade recalvables, loans and other rocoivablos are classified as subsaquently
measured at amortised cost. Trade and other receivables which does not contain any
significant financing component are stated at their transaction value as reduced by
impairment losses, it any.

Loans and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effactive Interest method, less any impairment. Interest neomeo s recognised by
applying the effective interest rate {(EIR} method.

Impairment of financial asseats

on initial recognition of the financial assels, a loss allowance for expected credit loss |s
recognised for debt [nstruments at amortlsed cost and FVTOCL, For dedt instruments

that are measurad at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised In pther comprehensive
incoma in tho ctatomaent of profit and loce and doec not reduca tha carrying amount of




the financial asset in the balance shest,

Expected credit losses of a financial Instrument is measured in a way that reflects;

« an unhbiased and probabllity-welghted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes;

« the time value of money; and

e reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
af Future economic conditions,

At each reporting date, the Company assess whether the credit nsk on a financial
instrument has Increased significantly since initial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default ocourring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial Instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable
and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that Is
indicative of significant Increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not Increased
significantly since Initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial nstrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit (nsses. If,
the credit risk on that financial instrument has Increased significantly since initial
recagnition, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount :quu{ to the lifetime expocted credit losses.

The amount of expected credit josses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the |oss
allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an Impairment gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when It trapsfers the financlal asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity,
If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
‘ownerchip and continues to control the transferred ascet, the Company racognices its
retainad interost in tha asset and on ascocioted liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of owneship of &
transferred fnancial asset, the Company conlinues o recognise the Nnanclal asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the procesds recelved.

On derecognition of a financlal asset other than in its entirety (e.g, when the Company
retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the
pravious carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it centinues to
recognise under continuing invelvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration recelved for the part ng longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to It that had bBeen recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of profit and logs. & cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognisaed in other camprehensive income i allocated
between the part that continues te be recognised and the pert that is no lenger
recognised un the basis of the relative falr values of those parts.




Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as oither financial liabilities or as equity in
sccordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument |5 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabllities. Equity Instruments Issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities
Finaneial llabilities are classified as either financial lHabllities 'at FVTPL' or 'cther
financial liabilities’,

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liahilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial lzbility is either hald
for trading or It is deslanated as at FVTPL.

A financial liabllity 1s classified as held for trading if:

= it has been acquired or Incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing It
in the near term; or

= on Initial recognitien It |s part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Company manages together and for which there is eviderce of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+ Itis a derivative that is nat deslgnated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may alsc be
designated as at FYTPL upen |nitial recognition if:

« cuch dasignation eliminates or significantly roduces 2 measurement ar
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; ar

+ the financial liability forms part of a group of financlal assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on & fair
value basis, in accordance with the Company's deocumented risk management
or Investment strategy, and |nformation about the grodping is provided
internally on that basis; or

« It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments penmits the entire comblned contract to be
designated as at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities at FUTFL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising an
remeasurament recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount
of change in the fair value of the fnancial liahility that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that llability which is recognised in other comprehensive income,

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss [ncorporates any
interest paid an the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net
of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest methad, with fnterest expense recognised on an effective yleld basis.




4,11Cash and
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The effective Intersst method Is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating Interest expense over the relevant peried. The
effective Interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financlal lHabillty, or {where appropriate) a
shorter period, to tha net carrying amount on Initial recognition.

Trade and other payables are recognised at their transaction cost, which s its fair
value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Offsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reparted in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceabla right to offset the recognised amounts and
thera is an intantion to cettle on a net basis or realize the aszet and sattle tha liability
simulteneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and rmust be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default,
INSIVENcY of bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with a2n original maturity of three months or less.

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that we will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Goyernment grants are recognised In the statement of profit and loss on a systematic
basis over the perieds In which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate, Government grants whose primary
condition is that the Company chould purchage, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current ascete are recognizad in the balance csheat by satting up the grant as dofarrad
I MEQ TS,

Uther government grants (grants related to Income) are racognized as ncome over
the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred ar for the purpese of providing
Immediate financial support with no future related costs are recognized in the
statemant of profit and loss in the periad in which they become recaivable.

Grants related to Income are presanted under other income In the staterment al profit
and loss except for grants received in the form of rebate or exemption which are
deducted In reporting the related expense.

Retiremant benefit, madical coste and termination banefite

A defined contribution plan i= a pensian plan under which the Company pays fised
contributions into & separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive
cbllgations to pay further contributions |f the fund does not hold sufficient assets o
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service n the current and prior
periods. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as
an axpense when employees have renderad service entitling them teo the contributions,

For defined benefit retirement and medical plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected wunit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of the
detined benelit oblgation is determined by discounting the estimated ruture cash
outflows using interest rates of government bonds. In countries where there Is a deep
market in high-guality corporate bonds, the market rate on those bonds that are
denominztad in tha currancy in which the hanefite will ba paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating £a the terms of the related pension abligation are uzed.

Remeasurement, compriging actuarial gains and losses; the effect of the changes to
the asset celling (if applicablz) and the return on plan assets (excluding Interest), Is




reflected  in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised Ino other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprahensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to the staterment of proflt and loss. Past service cost is recognised
in the statement of profit and |oss in the period of a plan amendment. Net Interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the perod to the net
defined benefit liahility or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

+  service oost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains

and losses on curtailments and settlements };
= net interest expense or income; and
* Remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the
statement of profit and loss in the line item employee benefits expense, Curtallment
gains and losses are accounted for a5 past service costs.

The retirement benefit abligation recognised In the balance shest represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from
this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plans ar reductions In future contributians to the plans,

The Company provides retiring benefits in the nature of provident fund,

S L

rannugtion and gratui its emplo i

Obligations for contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund are classified
as dafinad contribution nlans whareas retiring gratuity is classified as defined benafit

plamns,

A liabllity for a termination benefit is recognised at the earfler of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises
any related restructuring costs. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination bepefits are measured hased on the number of
employess expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
aftar the end of the reparting peried are discountad to their presant value,

Shert-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recoanised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the perind the related service is rendered at
the undiscounted amaunt of the benefits expected to ba paid in exchange for that

sService.

Liabilitles recognised In respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
SErvice.

Othear long-term employesa hanafits

Liabilities recagnised in respect of other long-term employea benefits are measurad at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected o be made by the
Company |n respect of seérvices provided by employees up to the reporting date. The
expected costs of these benefits are acorusd over the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as Used for defined benefit retirement plans. Actuarial
gains and Insses ansing from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial
assumptions are charged or cradited to the statement of profil and loss In the period
in which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independent gualified
actuaries.

The Company is providing benefits in the nature of compensated absences to its
employees which are classified as other long-term employee benefits.




4.14 Incamae
Taxes

4.15 Revenue
recognition

Tax expense reprasents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax Is provided at amounts expected to be pald (or recovered) using the tax

rates and laws that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the reporting date

and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, Subject to

vxceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all

temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and

liabllities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes:

= tax payable on the future remittance of the past =arnings of subsidiaries where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied and It s
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

+ deferred tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is more |kely than not
that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply te the year when the assct is realized or the liabllity |s settied, based aon tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date, Tax relating to tems recognized directly in other comprehensive income is
recoghised in the statement of comprehensive income and not In the statement of
profit or loss,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to the extent that it Is no longer prokable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avallable ta allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and llabllities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the samea taxation authority and the relevant entity Intends to settle [ts current tax
assets and liabilities an a net basis.

Revenue |s measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or recelvable.
Revenues are reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances.

Sales of Goeds
The Company derives revenue prindpelly from sale of Iron, manganese and sponge
Iron, Presently Baglaburu Iron Ore Mines is in operatién. Revenue is generated from
sale of finishad goods from this mine as well as sale of indisposed old stock of
Bhadrasai Mines.

Incoma from dividend, interest and rents

Dividend
Dividends income from investmaents are to ba recognised when the right to receive tha
dividend is established.

Interest

Interest income MroMm @ Tinanclal asset IS recognised when It Is probable that the
economic benefite will flaw ta the Company and the amount of income can be
measurad rellably. Interest Income |s accrued on a time basis, by reference Lo the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
linancial Asser o that assat's nal ff-'-'ll'l"s.’il"lg armaunt oo initial recndgnitinn

Consideration received from the authorities for use of a part of the available facilities
of the Company is recognized as revenue in the year of receipt/ realization.

Claims are accounted for in the statement of Profit and Loss based on certainty of their
realization,




4.16 First time adoption- mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

4.16.1 Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS of 1 April, 2015 (the transition date) by
recognizing all assets and liabllities whose recognition is required by Ind A5, not recognizing (tems. of assets

and liabilities which are not permitted by Ind A5, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as
required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measuremant of recognized assets and |iabilities. Howevar, thic

principle is subject to the certaln excéption and certsin optional exemptions avalled by the Company as
detallad below;

4.16.2 Derecognition of financlal assets and financial liahilities

The Company has appllied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabllitles
prospectively for transactions cecurring on or after 1 April, 2015 (the transition date).

4.16.3 Classification of debt Instruments

The Company has determined the classification of debt Instruments in terms of whether they meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FYTQCT criteria based on the facts and circumstances that oxisted as of tho
transition date.

4,16.4 Impalrment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of ind AS 105 retrospectively; however, as permitted
by Ind A5 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that |s available without undue cost or

effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognized in order to
compare it with the cradit risk at the transition date, Further, the Company has not undertaken an axhaustive

search for Information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been
significant Increases In credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101,

4.16.5 Assessment of embedded derivatives

The Company has assessed whether an embedded derivative s reguired to be separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative on the basis of the conditions that existed at the later of the date it first
became a party to the contract and the date when there has been a changa in the tarme of the contraet that
significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be reguired under the contract.

4,16.6 Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intanglble assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and eguipment and intangible
assets recognized as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrylng value as its deemed cost as of the transition date,

4.16.7 Determining whether an arrangement contains a leasa

The Campany has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Datarmining whether an Arrangament containg a leace to
determine whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition date contains a lesse on the basis of Tacts
and circumstances existed at that date,

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptinons ahout the carrying amounts of assets
gnd liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experlence and other factors that are considered to be refevant, Actual results may differ

from these estimates.




The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting

estimates are recounised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the ravision affects anly that period,
or In the period of the revicion and future pariode if the rovicion affacts both zurrent and future pericds.

5.1 Critieal judgments in applying accounting policias:

The fellowing are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note 4.2 below), that the
management have made In the process of applylng the Company's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financlal statements:

o

The management has reviewed the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost in the light of its business
modal and have canfirmed tha Company's positive intention and ability to hold these financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows. The carrying amount of these financial essets is Rs. B3,361.64 Lakhs (March 31, 2016
Rs, 82,101.97 Lakhs). Details of these assets are set out in note 33.

5.1:2 Provision for Restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites:-
Provisions are regonised for costs associated with restoration and rehabllitation of mining sites as soon as the

obligation to Incur such costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs are typical of extractive industries and
they are normally incorred at the end of the life of the mines, The cogts are estimated on the basls of mine
closura plans and the ectimated discounted costs of dismantling and removing these facilities and the costs of
restoration are capitalised when incurred reflecting the Company's obligations at that time.

A corresponding provisian is created on the liability side. The capitalised asset Is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss over tha life of the asset through depreciation over the life of the operation and the provision s
increased each period through unwinding the discount on the provision. Management estimates are based on
local legisiation and/or ather agreements. The actual costs and cash outflows may differ from estimates
because of changes In laws and regulations, changes in prices, analysis of cite conditions and changes in
rastoration tachnoiogy,

£.1.3 Ore reserve and mineral resource estimates

The Company estimates and reports ore reserves under the principles contained within the guldelines issusd by

the Indian Bureau of Mines (IEM) — including:

¢ Future production estimates — which include proved and probable reserves, resource estimates and
committed expansions,

5.1.4 Deferred stripping expenditure

The Company defers stripping (waste removal) costs Incurred during the production phase of its aperations.

This calculation requires the use of judgements and estimates relating to the expected tonnes of waste to be

removed over the life of the mining area and the expected economically recoverable reserves to be extracted

as a result, This information |s used to calculate the average life of mine strip ratio {expected waste to

expected mineral reserves ratie). Changes in a mine's life and design will usually result in changes to the

average llfe of mine strip ratio. These changes are accounted for prospectively.

5.2 Key sources of astimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertlainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment Lo the
carrying amounts of assets and llabilities within the next financial vear:

5.2.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

As described in note 4.2 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of proparty, plant and
eguipment at the end of each reporting period. However, since the lease of mines have explred and not
renewed till date, the company Is not in a position te review and assess the useful life of the assets constructed
over such leases.

5, 2.2 Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financlal reperting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an assets or a liability, the company uses market-obsenable data to the extent it s
avallable. Where level 1 inputs are not avallable, the company engages third party qualified valuers to perform

the valuation,
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THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements

IB Investment

.1 INVesTment In Joint Ventures Amt, In lakns
Nen-Current As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
Unguoted Investmante (a& fully Paid)

Investments in equity instrument (classifled a3 at cost)

East India Minerats Limited (28,11,010 shares ol Rs. 10.00 each fully paid up) . A

Total investmaent in Joint Ventures
Agreegate amount of impalrment In value of investments -
Agreegate carrying value of ungquoted Investmeants - 3

£.1.1 Details of loint Ventures

| Details of edch of the Company’s joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are a3 (ollows:

Mame of tha joint Ventura Principal Activity Place of Incarporation and Proportinn of ownership Interest / voting
principal place of business rights held by the Company

As at 31-03-2025 Az at 31-03-2024

East India Minarals Lid. Mining, Manufacturing and india U T
Trading
Invastmant on [V hae been shown under Qther Invastment due to explry of IV agreemant wee f. 04103013,
8.2 Other investments Amount in Lakhs
(Non-Current] As at 31-03-2025  Asat 31-03-2024 |

Unguated Investmants
Investments In equity Instruments [as fully paid)

The Eastern investments Limited {25,434 shares of Rs: 10.00 each fully paid up) 2,43 2.43
East India Minerals Limited [28,11,010 shares of Rs. 10.00 each fully paid up) 28110 28110
Weandlands Mult spaciality Hospital Limitad (500 shares of s 10.00 each fully paid up) 0.0% .05
The Sljua {Iherriah} Electric Supply Co. Ltd, [100 aheres of As. 10.00 sach fully Paid up) 0.m 0.01
Total Investments in equity Instruments 28358 283.58
Quoted Investments <

Total -Other non-current Investments 383 58 18358

Additional Information
Ageregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof

ta)  Agreegate amount of unguoted Investment 2B1.58 2B3.58
(b) Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments ) 28116 281,16
{c]  Net Other non-current Investment 242 242

8.3 Category-wise other Investmeants - as per Ind-A5 109 Classification
Amount in Lakhs

Asat31-03-2025  Asat31-03-2024 |
Financol assets mon :En{arily reaau red ab fair value thmuah profitor lese (FVTRL) 243 1:42
Amortise Loast

Tatal £45E 244

8.4 The Company had entered into a joint venture with M/s Usha (India) Ltd. for managing the assets of 0 /s East Indla Minerals Ltd. (EIML). The
matter is under dispute and present status of the company and loss if any on account of diminution in value has been provided for. As the JV
agreement explired on 04,10.2013, Investment on IV has been shown as Other Investment. Investment in Woodland Multi-speciality Hospital

Limited and The Sijua (Yherriah) Electric Supply Company Ltd, has also been provided for {Refer 8.2{b)}.




THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

9. Trade Receivables

9.1 Trade Receivables

Amt. In lakhs
As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
Non-Current 2025 2024
Trade Receivables
(@) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; - -
(bB) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 0.67 0.67
fc}  Trade Receivables which has significant increase in Credit Risk; and - -
()  Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 216.15 216.15
216.82 216.82
Less; Allowance for Bad and Doubtfull Debts 216.15 216.15
Met Trade Receivable 0.67 0.67
Amt. in lakhs
As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
Current 2025 2024
Trade Receivables
(@] Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; -
{b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; - -
(c] Trade Receivables which has significant increase in Credit Risk; and =
{d)] Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired =
Less:- Allowance for Bad and Doubtfull Debts =
Net Trade Receivables = =
Notes:

The sale of goods is made against advances received from custamer. Tha advance received from customer is adjusted on
supply of material, There is no credit period allowed for such sales and accordingly no interest is to be charged. The trade
receivable appearing in the books includes amount receivable recognised against the debtors towards the debit notec
raised on the customers due to changes in Government levies (Royalty on ad-voleram basis by IEM], The Company has
raised such debit notes on the basis of restrospective recomuptation of the sales made in the past peried from which the

retrospective levies have been made applicable by the Government.




8.2 Age of Receivables (at Gross)

As at 31.03.2025 Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Within Less b 1-2 year |2-3 year |More than 2{Totsl
Credit than 6&|months years
Period months |1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables - - -
Considered Good
Undisputed Trade Recelvables - which 216.82 216.82
have significant increasa in cradit rick
| |Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 216.15 216.15
impaired
Disputed Trade  Receivables - =
considered good
Disputed Trade Receivablec - which =
have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit -
impaired
As at 31.03.2024 Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Within Less 6 1-2 year |2-3 year |Mare than 3{Total
Credit than 6|manths yEars
Period manths {1 year
Undicputed Trade Receivahles - -
Considered Good
Undisputed Trade Recsivablas - which 216.82 216.82
have significant Increase In credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 216.15 216.15
impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables - -
considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables - which -
have slgnificant increase In credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit -
impaired
As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
2025 2024
Amount in Lakhs
As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
9.3 Movement in amounts of provisions for doubtful trade receivables 2025 2024
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (216.15) (216.15)
(Addition) / Reversal - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 m {216.15) (216.15)
r V
Lo +




Notes to the Financial Statements

10 - Loans and Advaces

THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
Nan-current 2025 2024
(i) Security Deposits;
{a) Loan Recelvables considerad good - Secured: 25.97 31.95
b} Loan Receivables considered good - Unsecured,
{c} Loan Receivables which has significant increase in Credit Risk 2.24 7.24
(d) Loan Receivables- Credit Impaired
(I} Loans to related parties;
33.21 35.19
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans
{1} Loans to employees
(ii) Loans to others {7.24) (7.24)
TOTAL 25.97 31.95

Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
10.1 Loans and Advances receivables further classified as: 2025 2024
(1) Loans to employees: 25.97 31.95
{a) Secured, considered good;
(b) Unsecured, considered good;
{c] Doubtful
(ii) Loansto related parties;
{a} Secured, considered good;
(h} Unsecured, considered good;
(c} Doubtful - -
(iii) Loanc to Others 7.24 7.24
: 332 39.19
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful loans
(i} Loans to employees N i
(i} Loans to others (7.24) (7.24)
TOTAL 25.97 31.95




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements

11 - Other financial assets

Amt. in lakhs
Mon-current As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
{1) Term deposits having a maturity more than 12 monthe 2,407.42
(2) Accrued Interest on Term deposits -
Met other financial assets 3,407.42

Current As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
(a) Security deposits and Earnest Money deposits
Unsecured, considered good 16346 163.45
(h) Term deposits having a maturity less than 12 manths 242.17 -
(e} Interest accrued un
(1)|Accrued Interest on Term deposits & Other
Unsecured, considered good 43.98 168.50
{2)|Other Receivables 54.02 5320
Unsecured, considered good
{d) Other receivables
{1)|Amount receivable from related party
Unsecured, considered good 775 21.54
Unsecured, considered doubtful
(2){Amount receivable from Others
Unsecured, considered doubtful 50.95 50.95
Gross other financial assets 562.33 457.65
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful ather financial assets
(a) Other recelvables {50.95) [50.595)
{b) Amount receivable from related party - -
Total Allowance for bad and doubtful other financial assets (50.95) {50.95)
Net other financial assets 511.38 406.70

11.1 The financial assets are carried at amortised cost,
11.2 Movement in amounts of provision for bad and doubtful other financial assets

Amount In Lakhs

Balance ac at 1ct April, 2024
Addition/[Reversal)

Balance as atMarch, 21, 2025

50.95

50.95




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

12 - Other assets

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

A. Non-current As at 31-03-2025 As at 21-03-2024
(@) |Prepaid lease payments for lease hold properties
{refer note 12.1) =
(b} |Prepaid expenses towards employes loans - =
Total non-current athar assats - -
Classification of other current asscts:
Secured, considered goud = =
Unsecured, considered good * i
Doubtful = =
Gross non-current ather assets = z
B. Current As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
{1} Advances
(a)|Advances to suppliers and service providers 179.06 211.38
()| Other advances 3, 017.82 275356
(i} |Advance to emplovees
Unsecured, considerad good 44 .74 34.12
(i}  [Others
(a)|Prepaid lease payments for leased lands= _ .
{refer note 12.1.21
[B]|Prepald expenses towards employee loans I L L./
{c}|Others prepaid expenses 19.28 289
Gross current other assets 3,262.36 3,043.75
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful ether current assets
iy |Advances
{a)|Advances to suppliers and service providers 55.47 60.33
(b} |other advances 149,10 145.09
Total allowance for bad and doubtful other current assets 204.57 209.42
Total other assets 3,057.79 2,834.33
Classification of current other assets:
Cecured, considered good = T
Unsecured, considered good 342 .65 2,834 33
Boubtful 2.010.71 200.42
Gross current other assets 3,262.36 3,043.75

12.1.1 Other Advances of Rs.3017.82 Lakhs includes Royalty Advance of Rs.152.54 Lakhs, Advance to others
of Rs. 149.10 Lakhs, payment of advance with protest amounting Rs. 2,715.14 Lacs to DDM, Joda against
compensation of excess mining for BPMEL Leases as per the Order of Supreme Court dated 02,08,2017, OMDC
was operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extracted the minerals under the Power of Attorney. OMDC is
the beneficial owner of the leases. The right of the leases in the name of OMDC is continuously being
contested. The issue of BPMEL Leases is subjudice. Pending finality of the case in the Court of Law of BPMEL
Minas (which is a liquidated company), in tha Court of Law, the payment made under protest on behalf of
BPMEL Mines of Rs.2715 Lac is shown under advance and provision was created for an equivalent amount in

Bl o B e Ve - ————

12.2 Movement in a ﬁmuntn of provision for bad and doubtful other asseats
Araunt RE, inlalkhe

Balance as at April 1, 2024 205942
Addition/(reversal) 2,710.29
Balance as at March, 31, 2025 2919.71

12.3 Prepaid expenses towards employee loans represents difference amount between actual interest charge
from employee and notianal interest at a Standard Rate of 9.25% for Motor Vehicle Loan and 8.55% for House
Building Advances. The said amount is haing ammortised over the period of loan amount.




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

13-Tax assets and tax liabilitics

A. Tax assets Amounk in Rs. Lakhs
Curreant As at 31-03-2025 ASs at 31-03-2025

{a] Income Tax 4.942.37 4.2Z1.26

Total Current tax assets 4,542.37 4,521.28

Classification of current tax assets
Secured, considered good = ==t =
lUnsecured, considered aood 4,542.37 4,521.28

Daubtful &
Total Current tax assets 4,542 37 4,521.78

B. Tax liabilitiog
Currant As 5t 31-02-2025 As at31-03-2024

{2} Income tax payabile - -

Total current ta=x liabilities - -

| Classiflication of current tax llabilties
Setured, considerad good = -
Unsecured, considered good = =
Doubtiul = -
Total - -

C. Tax Liability / Assets Net Off
Tax Assets Net Off 4,542.37 4,521.28
Tax Liability MNet OFfF = 3

13.1 Both the fioures (Tax Assete and Tax Liabilities) have been shown as gross,

14 - Tnvantorios Amount in Re. Lalthe

(Lawar of cast or net relisabla valual | A= ak31-03-2025 A= at 31-03-

Irr::l Raw materials 4741 | 47 41

(b} Finished goods 2.612.55 2,193,237

(L] Slures and sparas 146,79 137.51
Total 2,B06.75 2,37B.28

14.1 :a) OMDC was operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extracted the minerals under the
Power of Attorney. OMDC is the beneficial owner of the leases. The right of the leases in the name
of OMDC is continuously being contested. The case of BPMEL with OMDC is subjudice. Hence,the
stock lying in the area of Kolha Roida, Thakurani and Dalki of BPMEL (which is under liguidation)
have baen valued at Re,1.00 by OMDC and taken into ite booke of accounts.

b} similarly, in case of Thakurani and Belkund mines the book stock of Iron ore Is 1,77,337.33 Mt whereas the

corresponding I3MS [ Govt Fortal] record the guantity is 1,69,8148.30 MT. Difference s due to sudden
stoppage of mining activity in the both mines resulting non-updation of i3MS portal .

c) At Bhadrasai mines, iron ore of 65, 188.03 Mt was reported by independent physical verifier with Fe content
of below 5844 which iz not reflected in the Govt. partal i.e. i3AMS. Furthaer, gince the ahnve mentioned material
can not ba sold by OMDC the valuation for the gama is takan ac nil.

d} Physical verification of Iren Ore at Thakurani mines and Railway Siding-1 was conducted by an external
verifier and found to be 122670.45Mt against book stock 122083,72 ML with difference of 586.73ML Physical
stock of Iron Ore at Railway siding=2 could not be verified as materials are lying scattered and burried under
plactorm and Ttracks. 1he book balance of such material at Rallway siding-2 ways brought forward from eariier
vears at 16998.14Mt. The entire book stock of 139081.86Mt (Thakurani mines+Railway Siding-182)was
valued at Hs.1,39,081.86 (i.e. Rel/Mt), The difference |n book stock of 13908L.86Mt (Thakurani
milnes+Aallway Siding-182) against i3MS stock of 142828.62Mt by 3746.76MEt which was lagt due ta spillage
and wastage at non-operational mines since Dec'2009 and same was also not considered for valuation.

14.2 Valuation of Inventory has been made based on Average Sales Price publizhed by IBM and east
prica which ever is lower on book stock.

14,3 Raw material stock (coal & dolomite) lucated at Sponge Lron Plant (closed since the year

2010) has been valued at cost amounting to 47.41 Lakhs, Quantity of coal & dolomite is
2764.7G68Mt and B.790Mt respectively with correspondia value of Rs. 47.18 lakhs and Rs. 0.23
Lakhs. Physical verification of these raw material has baan « dnna by an independent verifier (both




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements

154 - Cash and cash eguivalents

For the purposas of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks at the end

Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

ta) [|Cash on hand 0.24 0.03
(oY Balances with banks
(1} Balance with scheduled banks
(1)In corment account 6,2944.35 #60.55
(i} {In deposit account (having maturity less than 3 months} - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 6.244.59 460.58

15B - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at 31-03-2025

As at 31-03-2024

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(1) Balagnce with echadulad banks

(i} |Earmarked Balance with scheduled banks (Margin Monay) - 1,884.81
{liy|Earmarked Balance with scheduled banks {Unpaid Dividend) P N 17.08
i In deposit account {having maturity betwesn 3-12 manths) =

Total other bank balances 7.15 2,011.80

Mote;

Earmarked Balance with Scheduled Bank other than cash and cash equivalent includes amount deposited in

scheduled banks towards unpaid dividends.

31




The Crissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

16 = Share capital
P Amount In Rs, Lakhs

[Particulars As at 313}&25 As at 31-03-2024
{Equity share capital &0.00 6000 |
o L e e b £9.00 =l e ISR
T [ e |
&, 000,000 fully paid shares of Ra, 1/- aach B0, 040 GELO0 |
— = - (60,00 (60,00 |
Issued and subscribed share capital comprises: )
6,000,000 Tully paid shares of Re. 1/ pach i | B0 |a.00 |
£0.00 60.00 |

16.1 Fully paid equity shares

et N, urmrgi.i Amuunltﬂl!n
i IE| Ig ;

Balance as at 01.04.2024 ﬁﬂ.na ] 60.00

issuc of shares -

Balance as ot 31.03.2025 0,00 Gb.ﬂ_.l_!

{a) Tha Company hae anly ana elace of aguity eharas having a par value of Re. 1/- each. Each ghare holder is aligible for ana vote por

ghara Tha dividend proposed by tha board of directors is subject to the approval of eharshaldars, excapt in rase of interim dividand. Tn tha
event of liquidation, the aequity sharehnlders are aligihle to recelve the remaining assats of the Company, after distribution of all praferantial
amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

16.2 Dotaile of shares hald by aach gharaholder holding more than 5% of shares
Sharas in Che Company held by sach snarehalder holding more than 5 percent shares apecilying the number of shares held,

As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2034
Mo, of shares % of holding of % of holding
Name of the Share Holder P shares| NO-0Of shares held rahkiesl
_Mﬁnm Limited 30,00,690 50.01% 30,040,890 S0.01%
2, Lite Insurance Corporathon of India 3,593,495 G5.55% 395356 E.E!_S:h.
2. A Lapdal Services Umited. =pde, HUd B2 4% 4,92,008 b.23%
4. Others 22,13.809 36.91% 42,13,809 36.91%
Total 60,00.000 100% 60,00,000 100%s
16.3 The details of shares held by the holding company |s also covered in the note no. 16.2
16.4 A reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
I Equity Shares
Particulars Number Face Value (Rs.) | Rs.in lakhs
Shares oukstanding as at the beginning of the year G000 600 00 Re, 1f- = a0.00
Shares aurstanding ac &t tha and of the year 50,00.000.00 RE. Lf- 60.00

L
[ o



The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

17 - Other equity

Particulars As at 31-03-2025| As at 31-03-2024
General reserve 32,474.35 32,474.35
Retalned earnings (37,692.15) {33,61]3.2.}’}
Total (5,217.79) (1,133.92)
17.1 Genearal Reserve

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-02-2024
Balance at the beginning of the year/period 32,4947%.35 3Z2.474.35
Movements = =
Balance at the end of the year/period 32,474.35 22,474.35

17.2 Retained Earn[ngs

Particulars As at 31-03-2025 As at 31-03-2024
Balance at the beginning of the year/period (33,608.26) (33,814.62)
Accretion / Decretion in PL i - =
Prafit / (Loss) atbributable to awners of the Cempany | (4,022.29) 281.91
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined (€1.55) (75.55)

penefit obligation net of income tax
FW loss adjustment
Retalned back of residual value of asset - -

Revarsal of Accrued Interest - -
Transfer to General Reseryve - -
Balance at the end of the year/period (37,692.21) (33,608.26)
Amount in Rs, Lakhs
Reserves and surplus
ik | General Retainad earnings Total
IRy resarve Profit and loss
Balance as at April 1st, 2024 32,474.35 (33,608.21) (1,133.86)
Accretion / Dasration in PL d
Profit / {Loss) for the year - - - (4,022.39) (4,022.29)
Other comprehensive income Tor the year, net of . (61.55) (61.55)
faxes
Payment of dividend B - =
Ratained back of recidual value of asset £ g =
Reversal of Accrued Interast - - -
Appropriation to reserves = = =
Balance as at 31-03-2025 32,474.35 (37,692.15) (5,217.81)

17,1 The General Reserve is used from timea to time to transfer profits from retained sarnings for
appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to
another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
raclassifiad subsequently to profit or loss.

17.2 Tha amount in the General Reserve that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity
shareholders is determined based upon the Company's financial statements and alse considering the

reguirements of the Companies Act, 2013.
17.3 In view of the company incurred loss in the Financial Year 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20,2020-21 and
2021-22,2022-23 no dividend was declared by the company. For the year 2023-24, though there was a

marginal profit after tax of Rs. 281.91 Lakhs dividend was not paid due to negetive networth and inadeguate
Tunds. —




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
MNotes to the Financlal Statements

1B (A) - BORROWINGS
Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03-| As at 31-03-

Mon-Current 2025 2024
{1}| Inter-Carporate Loans From RINL for Mining Leasa of Belkundi and Bhadrasahl mines 17.798.88 -
Total Non-current Borrowlngs 17, 728.88 =

1B (B) - BORROWINGS
Amount in Lakhs

Current As at 31-03-| As at 31-03-
2025 2024
Total current Borrowings - -

18 (C) - TRADE PAYABLES
Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03-| As at 31-03-
2025 2023 |

Currant

{1}|Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (See note 18.1 below)
{2} |Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

{3)|Trade payables for supplies and services 1B0.28 22250
Total current trade payables e 180.28 222.50

Trade Payable ageing Schedule

Qutstanding for following period from due date of payment

As ot 31.03.2025 (As. In Lakhs)
Farticuiars Mot Due Legss than L 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Total
yEar [ YEars
Memgs ——— — i L
Dthers 15062 . . 23.66 L8028
Oisputed dues - MSME *
Disputed dugs - Others =
Ao at 31.03.2024 [Fs. In Lakns]
Particufars Mot Dug Less than 1 1-2 year &3 year More than 3 Total
yEar YEars
MSME -
Others > 105.06 - 113.44 222,50
Disputed dues - MSHME -
L Disputed dugs - Others =

Notes:
18.1 There are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 which have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the hasis of

infarmation available with tha Company.




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited

MNotes to the Financial Statements
Amount in Lakhs

19 |Other Financial liabilitias
Current As at 31-03-2025| As at 31-03-2024
(a} Unpaid dividends (refer note 19.1 below) 3%.48 40.42
() Creditors for other liabllities
(1)| Royalty & other payables 256.97 240.42
(2] Othar current llabilities 2,157.09 1,668.29
Tatal current other finanecial lishilities 2,453.54 1,958.13

Mobtes:
19.1 uUnpaid dividend includes Rs. 32.34 lakhs for disputed dividend as on March 31, 2024. The Unpaid Dividend

pertains to 15-16 - Rs. 4.07 Lakhs & 16-17 - Rs. 3.07 Lakhs. Unpaid dividend of 7.14 Lakhs couldn’t be transferred
to IEPF due to frequent changes in signatories to the bank (effecting KYC Formalities) where unclaimed dividend
account is maintenad. The process of trnasfer has been initiated with new signatories as per Board Resolution Dt.
22" May'2025.

19.2 Other current liabilities amounting Rs. 2157.15 Lakhs includes Inoperative Account(Rs.197.51 Lakhs), Liability
toward General Mines Expenses (R5.1352.99 Lakhs), Liabllity toward Contractor & Sundry Creditors (Rs.1.27

Lakhs) and Liabilities toward Hospital, General(SIP), Railway (DC&Punitive), Stores for Mines & SIP etc (Rs.14.80
Lakhs), SAF, Law Charges etc & Pending Salary (520.58 Lakhs).

19.3 Inoperative Payable Accounts amounting to Rs.197.51 Lakhs are being reviewed on regular basis.

19.4 There are no dues payable to Migcro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micrg; Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the hasis of information available with the Company.




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

|20 A-Provisions (Non-Currents) Armount in Lakhs
Particular As at 31-03-2025| A= at 31-032-2024
Mon-current
(a) (1) Retiring gratuily 223.66 125,36
(i) Leave Encashment 353,50 324.09
ilif) Half-pay Leave 52.08 &7.75
(iv] Medical Benefit to Retired Employees = =
(b Other Long-term employee benefits
{i) Compensated absences - -
{c} Provisivn on Sales tax Appeal - 5315
Total non-current provisions G29.24 550.35
20 B-Provisions (Currents)
Particular As at 31-03-2025| As at 31-03-2024
Current
fal Pravision for employes benefits
(1] Ratirmesit Benefits Obligations
(1) Retiring Gratuity 54.749 55.44
(i} Leave Encachmant 8456 52.87
LT} Half-pay Leave 4.48 3.22
{Iv) Medical Banofit to Retirad Employess - -
=) (1)  Cther Employes Benefite
(1) Campensated absences 492,29 +30.96
{11} Provigion for pay ravician 4 575 54 4,399 95
i} Provision for Bonus and unpald wages 0a7 D.97
(e Oither provisions
(1} Provision for Judicial Award L RABh 1,167.66
(2} Other provisians 2,873,892 113,64
{3} Provision on Sales Lax Appeal 53,15
Total Current Provisions 9.307.36 6,225,722

20 C-Lease Liabilities (Non-Currents)

Particular | A= at 31-03-2025] As st 31-03—2D24I

{2) (1) Provision for site reciamation 138.26 LB6,55
Total Non-Current Lease Liabilities 138.26 286.55
20 D-Lease Liabjlities (Currents)

Particular | AS at 31-03-203| AS ot 31-03-2024]
{1}  Provision towards Forest Dept, 206,05 155.75
()  Provision towards Mining Dept,, 1715 .
(37 Frovision towards Poliutlon Dept. 18,77 168.77
{4 Pravision far Restoration Cost 417.93 417.93
Total Current Lease Liabilities 657.90 590.45

20.1 Movement in the balances of provision during the year
Other provisions

Provision for site
P oiaton (oce ! | reclamation& | SUICLIST | Other
note (i)] Restoration Cost [See note (iii)] provisions
[See nate (ii)]

Balance as at April 1, 2024 4,399,960 Z806.55 1,167.66 113.04
Additignal provision rec a_imsed { (reversed) 1/3.58 [148.258) (.G ) 2, 750,24
Balance as at March §,9/ 0.99 138,20 1,107.00 Z,873.92
Notes:
(i) Pay Revision of Employeas;

The pravision Is recognised with respect to the pay revision of the employees of Central Public Sector Enterprises, Lhe same |s
provided for in the books of accounts with effect from 1st April, 2010 on basis of the difference In Baslc Pay and Industrial
Dearness Allowance between 1997 and 2007 Pay Scale.Calculation made on basis of the present basic pay and IDA component
of the existing employees.

(ii)_Provisian for site Reclaimation & Restoration:

Provision for site reclaimation is made with respect to the restoration of the mines and are made against the demand raised by

the various mining related departments of Governrment for site reclamation and restoration as required under the Mining laws.
Balance amounl for site reclaimation bas=d on revised calculotion |s provided in contingent lTability.

(iii)_Provision for Legal ahligation -Provigion available for Lagal ﬂh eiintrs Hs. 1167.66 Lakh.

1 Ehuhanseswir
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Z1 - Deferred @Ex llabilities

The fellowing is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(Habiites) presented in the alance sheel:

Ameunt in Lakhs

As at 31-03-2035

As at 31-03-2024

Defarrad tax accote
Deferred tax liabilitiss

10579 00

18710.809

Met Deferred Tax Assets as on 31.03,.2025

19525.00

18710.99

Opening balance

Recognised In

Recognised in othser

Ciosing balance as

2024-25 as at comprahensive at)
i
01.04.2024 SR income 31.03.2025
Deferrod tax (liabilities) / ascetc:
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
o 3
E:qslq arence batwean book balance and tax balance of fiked — (153.87) e
554.33 {153.97) = AB0.36 |
Tax affect of itame constituting deferrad kax accats
Provision far cempenasied sbasnusy, grakuity and sther smployes
banafitz recognisod in profit snd loos 175.55 {312'21} t 135-5‘5‘}
Tax Impact on remeEasurement gain/(loss} anising rom defined - -
lsemiat GoligEton {5.85) - 21.63 15.78
Provision for doubtful debts / advances / compensslicn / Loss 19,095.61 954,63 20,050, 24
Diszllowances under section 438 ar tne Incame Tax .I’LC.[,, 18] =
19265.31 642,42 21.63 | 19929.36
Deferred tax (llabllities) [ assets (net) _ (18710.98) {796,940} (21.63) (19529.00)

Wote:- Deferred Tax Calculation |5 made based on temporary difference of depredation as per Company's Acl, 2013 and Inoome Tas AL 1961 disallowances

s 40A[7) B 430 and Business Loss / unabsorbed depreciation upto the assessment Year 2023-24,

3i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 - Other liabilities

Amount in Lakhs

As at 31-03-

As at 31-03-

Suaprant 2025 2024
(i) Advances received from customers(S Drs Payabla) 24,053.76 22 073.87
r " . L]
(y ~ Statutory dues 158,71 669.16
(1) Buyer's EMD & Contractor's SD & Other Payabla's 2,010.97 1,959.58
(i) Bagiaburu MDO contract - KAYPEE Ent 615.20 163.28
w) Cther current liabllities's & Payable’s 920.64 548.48
Total other liabilities 27,759.88 25,414.47
34 &/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Sheet 23 A - Income from Operation

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

sl. Ne Baricilais For the Year Ended For the Year
i’ 31-03-2025| Ended 31-03-2024
A, Sales of Product

{it|lron Ore B.460.13 B,187.56
(fi}|Manganese Cira 1.46 40.36

{iii}|Sponge - -
Total Sales of Product A 6,461.59 8,227.92 |

B, Other Operating Revenue = =

Total Other Operating Revenue B . .
Total Revenue from Dn-_eﬂon 6,461.59 B.227.92

Sheet 23 B - Other income

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Sl. No. Particulars

For the Year Ended
31-03-2025

For the Year
Ended 31-03-2024

{a) Interest income from:
(1)|Bank deposits
(2] |Non-current investment
(3){Interest on Income Tax refund
(4)|Others (Interest on MVA B HBA)

(b} |Dividend Income

Dividend from equity Instruments
() Interest benefits on amortisation of employee loans
{d} |Liabilities no longer required written back
(|) Ca-sharing Expenses
(fy  |Miscellanecus income

Total other income

200.40

10.56
1.26

317.88

108.48
638.58

370.17

2.08
1.77

130,00

146.17
710.20

Note: (i) Miscallansous Incoma includes rent received fram SEI for ATM Countre, BSNL for Mobile Tower

and recovered from Agencles for their employees accomodation.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

For the Year Ended
31-03-2025

For the Year
Ended 31-03-2024

(a) Provision for Income Tax Written Back
{b) Liability Mo Longer Required Written Back

Total Exceptional Items
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24 - Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

For the Year Ended Increase / For the Year Ended 31~

SI. No. |Particulars 31-03-2025 (Decrease) 03-2024
1 Iron Ore 2,254.60 702.64 1,652.05

2 Manganese Ore 257.86 (283.45) 541.31

3 Sponge Iron - (0.00) 0.00

4 Coal AT7.17 {0.01) A7.18

g Delomite 0.23 0.00 0.23
2,659.95 418,18 2,240.77

24.1 OMDC was operating the BPMEL Mines upto 2010 and extracted the minerals under the
FPower of Allorney. OMDC is the beneficial owner of the leases. The right of the leases in the
name of OMDC is continuously being contested. The issue of lease right in the Court of Law is
pending to be decided, since the case of BPMEL with OMDC is subjudice. The stock lying in the
area of Kolha Roida, Thakurani and Dalki of BPMEL (which is a liquidated company) have been

valued by OMDC at Re.1.00 and taken into its books of accounts.

4
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25 - Employee benefit expense

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

T Gl 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

(&) Salaries and wages, including bonus 1.680.20 1,507.87
(b) |Contribution to provident and other funds: 463.76 516.80
(1}|Provident Fund 123.88 158.11
{2V|Superannuation Fund £E8.78 65.08

(3}|Employees State Insurance
(4)|Gratulty & Leave Encashment & Half Pay 281.10 293.61
{5} | Post employment pension scheme - -
(6) |Soclal Security Costs - -
{d) Share based payment transactions expences - -
(e} Staff welfare expenses 255,70 323.95
Total employee benefit expense Z2,399.66 Z,348.63

Note:- The manpower as on 31.03.2024 is 189, which has been reduced by 18 heads compared
to last financial year.

ki
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 - Finance cost
Amount in Bs. Lakhs

. For the Year Ended|For the Year Ended 31

5l. No. Particulars e S O3

[a) Interest expoense 2, 19548 3,056.87

I )] BG Commission & Bank Service Charges “+3,549 .21
Total Finance cost — 2,241,12 3.061.08

Finance Cost includes the following ;-

(1) B. G. Commission-Rs.45.64lakh and Interest on trade advance from RINL-Rs.2195.4ELakh.




The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
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27 - Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Depreciation of plant, property and equipment 38.83 40.48

Amortisation of intangible assets 35,92 188.14
Impalrment Losses-Mining Rights 317.01

Total depreciation and amortisation 391.76 138.62

Notes:

(i) Expenditure incurred for obtaining required clearances to operate the mines
subsequent to the allotment of their lease is capitalised as Intangible Assets,

{li) Considering the verdict of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India on 16.05.2024, net
intangible asset (Mining Rights) w.r.t. the three BPMEL mines is considered asset impaired
in the current FY 2024-25 and charged to revenue accordingly.
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28 - Other expenses
Amount in Rs, Lakhs

]Fur the Year Ended 31-| For the Year Ended

Sl BERIpod ! 03-2025 31-03-2024
{a]l [Stores and sparos consumed | 11.580 2724
() Repairs to buildings 29.71 12.29
fe) Rapairs ta machinery 473,57 431.70
{d] _ |General Repair and Cantractial Labour 261.56 230.48
(@)  |Purchace of pawer and Fuel 107.84 119.70

(f] __|Rent expences 3371 26.37 |
(o] |Rates and taxes 57 45 7188
Ih Insurance charges 5.04 2.14
{1 Auditars romunoration and sut-of-pocket expanses (Rofer no. 28,11 .33 532
(1} Advertizament axpanass 1.94 2,18
[k} Sarurity expenses 353.60 331.87
(1 Corporate Social Recpansibllity svpensee (Rafar noke na. 382 =
(m) |Minec Oparation/Leace mattar and Environmant pretection sxpantec 157,30 237
(n) Brinting and statinnery pypences .43 1.30
{nd Telaphans R Internat sypoances 2.81 1.32
{p) |Packing & Trancporting Expensec 0.04 .40
{a) Compensation anainst excess mining (Frovision) 2.715.14 .
{r) Laase Rant (KMDA) 0,52 346
(5] amartisation of Pepaid expenses on employea [oans 0.24 027

[t AGM J Annual Day ) Board Meeting Expenditure .43 .46 |
(u)  |Travelling Expenses 2,10 085G
(v} IHotel and incidental expenses 3.40 2,03
[w) |Law Charges 34 .53 23,77
iz} |Consultancy Charges — 13.18 B.36
(¥} [Motor Car Expenses 51,301 4644
(&) |Rovalty, dead rent or surface rent = 2,302.15 1.5944 65
— [pa]_ |DMF (Lusirict Mineral Foundafion) [ 43477 43075
[ap}  |NMET(Naticnal Mineral Exploration Trust) — = L 28,599 | 24,44
fac] |User Fee 2.73 325
{ad} [Mining Contract Expenses 513.55 163.38
__{@e] |Other General expenses 149.76 14748
Total other expenses 7,327.21 3,766.84

Note:1

Compensation against Excess Mining:-Pursuant to the Judgement of Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 02.08.2017, Dy. Director of]|
Mines, Odisha had issued different demand notices dated 02.09.2017, 23.10.2017 & 23.12.2017 to BPMEL towards
compensation. The amount of Demand for BPMEL Leases is Rs. B6157.12 Lacs towards EC, FC and MP/CTO. OMDC had been|
operating BPMEL Leases backed by Power of Attorney to sign and execute all mining leases and other mineral concessions
from time to time.

OMDC paid a sum of Rs. 2715.14 Lakhs (Rs. 2515.14 Lakhs on 29.12.2017 and Rs. 200.00 Lakhs on 16.11.2018) towards
compensation for BPMEL Leases as an advance under protest. The remaining amount of compensation including interest upto
31.03.2025 against BEPMEL Leaces amounting Re. 1023038 00 Lalkh are chown under Contingent Liahility. A provieon s created
in current financial year against the advance of Re. 2715.14 Lakhs by charging off to revenua.

Hote 2:i- Leasehold Properties has been reclassified as operating lease. Ammortisation of prepayment of Leasehold Properties
has beaen shown under Ammortisation of Prepaoyment Leaschold Propertices,

"For the Year Ended 31-] For the Year Ended
03-2025 31-03-2024

28.1 Details of Auditor’s remuneration for the pericd ended:
Auditors remuneration and oul-af-pocket expenses
{i} As Auditors 5.32 532
(i1} For Taxation mattars -
fi} For Other sarvices -
tiv} For reimbursement of expenses - .
Total 5,32 532

For the Year Ended 31-| For the Year Ended

03-2025 31-03-2024
©. Delalls ol refated party Lransactions
(11 Contribution during the year Mil il
(1) Fayable as at the year engd il Hll
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29. Income taxes
26.1 Income taxes recognised in profit and loss

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
In respect of the current year - =
Deferred tax
In respect of the current vear (796.39) (786.24)
(796.39) (786.24)
Total Income qu expense recognised in the current year (796.29) (786.24)
relating to continuing operations

290.2 Thea income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

31-03-202% 31-03-2024
Profit before tax (4,840.40) (530.88)
Income tax expense calculated at 26% (1,258 .50) {138.03)
Effect of Income Tax that Is exempt from taxation
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 440.49 (674.76)
profit i i
Current tax in respect of the previous years =
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (818.01) (B1Z.79)

29.3 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Deferred tax
Arising on Income and expanses recognised in other 316
comprehensive inceme .
Total incomea tax recagniced in othar comprehensive income 21.63 26.55
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other
comprehensive Income Into:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 21.63 26.55
Total 21.63 26.55
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30 - Segment information

30.1 Products from which reportable segments derive their revenuas
&, Iron Ore

b. Manganese

& opange Iron

30.2 Segment revenues and results

The fallawing is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from gperations by reporiable sagment
Amount in Lakhs

Seqment revenue Segment profit

For the Year Ended| For the Year Ended| For the Year Endead For the Year Ended

31-03-2025 31-03-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2025

Iron ore segmeant 5.460.13 B.1B7.56 {4,404 06} 2,467 39
Manganese segment 1.46 40,38 (1,007 12.15
Sponge iFon Segmeant ! = 5 =
Unallocsted 635 .56 FLOZ0 [435.34) 21403
Total fram operations 7,100.17 8,838.12 {4,840.40) 2,693.58]
Gthar income 5
Profit hafars Tax (4840404 {267.850%
Tay BYpances (g18.01) [R13.92%
Total prafit from operations [(40237.39) 445 39

30.3 Seoment assets and liabilities
Amount in Lakhs

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended

J1-03-2025 31-03-2024
Segment assets
Iran pre segment 2,360.05 1,657.41
Manganese segment 257.86 541.31
Sponge iron segrmant 344,89 344 .89
Total segment asscls 2,9G2.80 2;343.61
Unaliccated S0,804.73 3162965
Consolidated total assets 53,767.53 34,173.26
Segment llabilities
Iran one sagment - -
Manganose segiment
Sponge lran segment - -
Total segment liabilities -
Unzllocated 58,035.34 35,247.17
Consolidated total liabilitics 58,636.34 35,347.17

The Company has identified Iron Ore, Manganese Ore and Sponge Iron as their Business Segment. Though Iron Ore and Manganess
Ore Mines as well as Spange Eron Plant are closed since Sept., 2010 for Bhadrasai and Bslkundi mines, howeyver Bagiaburu mines
regpened in Dec'2023 and started commercial production

Presently Company’s source of revenue 15 Salg of old stocks { Tron are] from Bhadrasal mines did sele of fresh stock (Iron org) (rom
Bagiabury mines, Companles other sources of (ncomes (noludes Intarest on Fixed deposits &ept in Lien against Bank Guarantee and
rental income.

The Assets have been allocated directly which are identifiable to the respective segmant and the balance s put in the un-gllocated
sanmant Tha mikal Hahilities have hean allacared boin-allneated craoment

30.4 Other segment information Amount in Lakhs
Depreciation and amortisation Additions to non-current assets
For the Year Ended Year ended| For the Year Ended|  For the Year ended

31-03-7025 31.03.2024 31-03-2025 31.03.2024
Lron ore segment = -
Manganese sogmant - .

Sponge ron segmant 4,22 4,22 . 0
Unallocated 367.54 453 26 97.32 Bi.68
Total for operations 391.76 487.48 §7.32 B1.68

30.5 Ravenus froam Major Products

IThe fallawing. iz an analysic of tha Company's ravenue from aperations fram (18 major praducts and services
Amount in Lakhs

For tha Year Endaed| For the Year endead
31-032-2075 21.03.2024
Iran ore seament f,460.13 &,187.58
Mongongac acgment LG 40536
Sponge Iren segment . -
Unallocated . e - =
Total Revenue from Major Product 6,461.59 8,227.92

30.5 Geographical information
The Company operates malnly In principal geooraphical arpas-India anly and the Campany daes nok have any ather aperation o any
Country cutcide Tndia. Accordingly, the Genaraphical information will only be applicable to India

Revenue from external customers Mon-current assets
For the Year Ended| For the Year ended| For the Year Ended | For the Year ended
— . 31-03=-2025 31.0 24 31-03-2025 31.03.2024
Tndia 2100t/ H U4 17 BT R 2k (U8
Dtside India . = = i L =l
Total G/ 40017 B,958.12 36,597.50 26,080.80

30,7 Information about major c T

The company is currently operay

W
gy -;.'! The major customers for this mine are 2.0 Steel & Power Ltd, 0.0
Internationa Pvi.Ltd, Mahanadi Hll

; Rastriya Lspot Nigam Ltd,

%’5{‘.’ 4o

h
L]
a
h
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31 - Earnings per share
Amount In Bs Amcunt in Rs.
For the Year Ended For the Year endad
R=. per share Rs, per share
Raszic and dilisked sarmings por chara (E7.04% .70

31.1 Bagie and diluted sarmings per share
The sarnings and weighted average numbaer of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are

as folinwe
For the Yaar Ended Far the Year ended
31-03-2025 31.03.3034
(4,022.39)] 281.91
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted
|_earnings per share (4.022.39) 28191
For the Year onded |
= 31.03.2024
Quantity in lakhs Quantity in lakhs
Weghted average number of equity shares cutstanding for the =
purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share G0.00 60,00

Earning per share has further fallen down this year mainly because of losses incurred for payment & provision of
Compensation for excess mining as per Supreme Court decision.

41
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32 = Employee bensfit plan
32,1 Dafined contribution plan
o) Provident Tunds Company pays fxzed contribution o Provident Fund at the rate of 13% on Basic & 104,

32.2 Defined banafit plans
a) Gratuity: Payable on saparation & 15 days pay for sach completad vear of servics to aligibls emplayess wha randar eantinusus seevies of 5§ vedrs or moss and
maxlmum payable amount s calculated S per Gratulty At The gratoity amount i coverad under "the Gratuity cum Life Insurance Schema” with UIC of Tndla and the
provision an account of gratuity s heing mare as per the actuanal valuation

These plans typically sxpose the group to actuarisl rsks such a3 actuacial risk; investmant risk, nterest rsky lengetivity risk and salary risk;

i. Actuarial risk: It is tha risk that beneflts will cost more than expected. This can arise due to-one of the following reasons:

AOverse S-Elal‘lr' Groweh f!ptl‘lEﬂfEf Eﬂlar}." fikes that are h!ghﬂ than the assumed saiary ascatation will result infa an Incredse |n ':'_Imlgﬂ-[iﬂ"'- Al a raEte that |9 higl‘b!r than
EXpected.

vanability i mortabicy rotes: 16 ectual moralicy rawes are figher than assumisd mortality rate assUumpoon tan e Wramy DeEnefits will 08 g0 earier than expecied,
Singe there is no condition of vesting on the death benafit, the acceleration of cashfiow will lead to-an actuarial loss of gain depending on e relacive values of the
arsumed salary growth and discount rats.

wariability | withdrawal rates: IF actual withorawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratulty benefits will be pald eadier than
expacted. The impact of this will 0epend on whethes the Denefits are wested as ar the recigration date.

il Investment rish For funded plans that fely on s ess Mol managinvg Uhe assiebs, thie value of aswels cstified Ly Eha sudsr inay (et B ther Falr walue of jnsirpmrenis
bll:l{:d-l: tha Hakility. In such cases, the preEsent walum of the ass=is is independent of the Fubure discount rebe, This cam resuly | wide Meckuations In e et liabablity ekl
fundad gtatus if thare are significant changes in tho discount fata durisg Eha inkber-valuation pariad.

Lk Interest risi; A decreass in inbenest rabe will incregde the plan sability; bowever, tris will be paritisity offsel by an incease |in e retumoon the plan assets

v, Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lnbllity is calculoted by Fefernce oo the best estimats of the morgality of plan participants Soth during
and after their :mpl.uq'n\cnt. An Inprease In the life expectancy of the plan pacticipants will Increase he plen's Habilivy,

v. Salary rish: 1he present valve of the dehned benall plan hatubty 18 Caltulated Gy reference to the future salanes of glan participants; A5 such, an Incroase N the
salary of the plan portclpants will increase the plan's abiity.,

Mo other post-retirement benafits are provided Lo these emplovees.
The most recent actuanial valuation of the pdan assets and the present value of the defined beneft obligation were carried Gut 35 at Masch 31, 2025 by M's. Kapadia

Actuartes and Consultants, 3 frm with fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Indig. The present value of defined peaefil abilgetion and the relabed currant service £ost
were measured using the projecied unit credit method

The principal assumptions used for the purnosas of the acturial valuations wers a5 follows:

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Dimcount rate{=} B FA0%
Ezpactied ratels) of salary inceeass 5,000 5000
withdrawal rats ?; at ya unan;;lu-: reducing ta ?% at yaunger ages reducing ba
Amaunts recognised In statemient af profit and loss in respect of thise defined benefits plans are as fallows:-
Amount in Rs. lakhs
Period ended Year ended
31,03.2035 31.03.2024
Service cost
Current service cost 4534 50.78
Past service cost and {gain)/toss from ssitlements
et (nterest supenes 2.55 (0.B&
mponents of defi nefi in profit or loss = - 56,89 49.92
Remaasurement an Fhe net dnfinod henafit Hahilivy:
Ratuim an plan assets excluding amounts included
in interest incomea 43.58 {43:13}
Actuarial {gnins)/lesses ordsing from changes in
damearanhiz seeumotiene - *
Actuarial {galns)/Insses arising from changes in
financial assumntions 3292 E.48
Actuarial {galns)/losses arlsing from experience
assumpticang = b.£8 130, /4
|[Components of defined Denefit COSTS recoqnised In other comprehensive (ncome | = 8318 | ig0z,10
Tolal 140.07 152.02

The current sarvice cost and the nat inkerest expanse for the year are included in the "Emplayes benefits expense line bem in the statement of profit and |oss.

The remeasurement net defined liabiity is Induded in-pther comprehensive Income.
The amounl ngluded In U balancs sheel ardsiog from the entity's oblination in respect of its defined benefit plans is a5 foliows:

2 Amount in Bs. lakhs
I1-Mar-25 Gratulty
Presant valus of funded defined banafit obligation 1,200.70
Fry P 1,195, 055]
met Hnbility arising from defined benefit obligation 141.35

&0
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Gratuity

Opening defined benefit obligation as o April 01, 2024 123277
Clirrant sarvice cost 45,34
Interas: Cosk 7015
Remessurement {gaine)insmns: !
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from charoes n )
demoaranhic assumstions
Actuanal [Gains)/losses arising from changes in 332,07
financial assumnptions :
Fasl Service Cost
Actuarial {Gains)/losses arlsing Mo experioncs .27
assumobons >
Henefits pald = {10075}

sing defined be 31, 2025 1,230.70
Movements in the fair vaiue of the plan assats are as follows:
| Gratulty
Opening fair value of plan assets ag at April 01, 2024 1,0599.48
Intarest Income F1.60
etiarn g plan sssets {sxcluding smounts Included
i rEt (ibaremt s pense ) 43,98
Contribubon from the smglayer 18200
|Banefits onid {1069, 75Y

i h 31 1,140.35

Thee fzir valie of Lhe plan assels for India and oversieas plan ot the end of the reparting period Tor sach category, are as follows: -

Amount in Lakhs.

Fair value of plan assels as ol

31-Mar-25 F1-Mar-24
Life Insiiraices of India {100%) 1,149.35 1,099.48
Total = 1:,149:35 1.095.48

&
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321.3.1 - Bensitivity analysis of defined benefil plans

32,31 Sigrificant achurial assumation for cecenmination of defined benefit pian are dscount rate, expected salary growth, abintion rate and moratlity rate: The
sensitivity anzalyss below have been based on reasonsbly possike chenges of the respective assumptions BCourning at the end of the reporting perod while-hplding
ill othet sgsumptions constant,

321.1.2 Sonsltlvity analysis
Amount In Re lakhs

31-Mar-258 J1-Mar-24
Particulors Gratuity Gratulty
Incraass Decreass Incrancs Mecreass

gln.um:l ?n amount due to

nge in Discount rate [-
{4+ 0.5%) ( A3.79 G022 Gd.1a FETFL
i Chiengn campnred to bone
Aus ta paneiyiy [a 3o 3. 37% 2 A3 i) 236
Impact on amount due to
changa In Salary growth (- : 1

1 S8.47 57,00 Faisa Bt 42

L0550

%, Change cnmpared b bane
1= 2. 35% -2, 16% 2t £40%
Impact on amaunt dua to
change In withdrawal rate (-

L+ 100 EB. 315 Ci3} Fi b4 Jo.6a |
¥a Clhiinge cormpared o Dase |
ity to gty T4/-1%] 0.13% DA% 8,195 3,105

The sensitivity analysis presanted above may Aot be representativa of tha actual changa in tha defined benefit obfigation as it s unlikely that
the change in assumptions would gccur in Isolation of ane another &8 some of the mesumptions mey be corrslsted,

Furthermore, in presenting the above concitivity analyeie, tha precant valus of dofined bonafit abligation hae been ealeulated using prajostad|
unit credit method at the end of the réporting perlod, which s same as that applied in calculating the defined henefit obligation lability
recognised in the balance sheet,

There is v changs in Uk methods sod assumplons ussid In prapering the sanstivity analysis from prior years.
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A3-24 - Finapcial Instrumeias

3icC st ad i d ingkr +
Bamownk | s, lekhs
s wk I L-00- As s }i-ﬂa
Financal Raswis
Mannmed a8 fnly ok thraugh sopflt e lode [PVTRLY l
18] Manustod ly el ad
¥} Equily Ve 444 Ldi
T e 1 143 T42
Mudgyral o s
Hal Dttt i ey 5
181 Caeh and Lokt Bulaoesi 6.251.74 147347
STk recos nblan " gy
£l Lasbin 2G9N LS
i = | 351880 408,70
Tuocal Mnancs) astetls Neskurod @1 &N oreed cost 1&’““_“ 2.911.78
12093 3,914 28
T a0, 1a A
|Mbtasursd a Ssraoriised ciml — 2 2.5
71 ¢ ALK

1.5 Fi inl rlek o

Tha Companmy’s principal financial nsthsmests compise Tinancial llasliles oo financisl 3sis, TRe Compames piiopl finnmos (iebilibes cnmprses fmde paysmse ama ocer franon) IsHltes Tha main
|purse of thiss finindal inshrumentt & b marage. short-herm caeh Now and rEes Tinseos bor ihe Campasy's capial sspanditure program, The Compary bae vargys finensly 2epohs such 36 trpda
U anl Zikh ded ahiooy ¥ which erive direcily Irom i gperatinne

MisH Edpaires and respanses

Thie Cnmpary masages & oxzotore o key Hnandal risks In aconrsaros with thi Compams Francibl co mansgement policy, The sspective of the policy 5 o0 suppodt the allvery 6l tha Compars
feapsin targats while pmtbacting Tuhiem Kpancial sttty Ths mmi rigks i codd idosoely: ssck the Gy’ (inanclal sessi, lesiitas o0 Tt cagh ows s markat ks, comgnging commadilg
B ik, casl Mo el rabe rik and Toregn currency rink nnd |iguitey Tk and credil FiTh, MASBQEMENT fIviswE Bl Bgris pncss fer mnmgyg wes (ol these peks miich e smeeized elow

Thie Hoan urmu'fli'h‘_s B dfjreed pohica for masaging dach of hnge risks shich are simmesicad oo

184 Mkt ek

Marhel nsa & the rdk thal the fir walue of future @sn fows of o Ainancal Inseument wifl Nuctuets b=cayse of cherges m merkes prices, Tre Company's Bingnoal irsnement Madket pioss complse tree
rpes Gf sl caimeiy miek, HRNSL Sl v and olfar grice Hik wWiTL vidlals Squty pncs i and mmmodily grien ek, financnl isramenrs pffscted oy maaet ook 00U0e 0608, d e retseibies,
ather limseclal poeade, brada poyahlic wod deher lnseslal ahilliigs

mﬂ‘ﬂu"ﬂr analyses Pave not been prepared i fhem @ ong ameunt cutstanding s gebr, having et fved or Npating interest @S, oo Sratnes Ananos mseuments and no fsancial insmmenis
T Farsins darreney risk menagemank

Thir Compimy does fiol undertake =y transection in forsign currency, corsequenily, capmiores b0 gaptgngo rate Machaabon s ol are, T Curgany haa all enmred a0 the tromesiion @ oameRcy
I 0 T ML L Riiny il sl el gly o Babwi pf clrrescy hat S beor i imimed fed wory ios jevel
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The Orissa
Notes to the Financial Statements

35 - Related party transactions

A Ultimate holding company
(o) Rashtriya Ispat Migam Limited

B) Parant company
(a} Eagtarn Investmenis Limited

) Fallnw subeidiary company
{a) The Bléra Stone Lime Company Limited

D) Key Mapagerial Personnel:

(&) Shri Anan Kant! Baqchl
b1 Skl Vvasudha Chandra Suratial
fc) Shri Ramakantd Behera
{d) 5hrl Arindam Maltra
{2] Brit Raja Babu
(F} Shr Pintu Humar Blzwal

35.1 Trading tranzactions

Minerals Development Company Limited

Managing Girector/ CEQ (01.04.2023-t0 21,02, 2045)
Managing Birector {Addl, Cherge we.f, Z2.02,2025)
Chief Financial Officer (01,04.2034 fo 06.01.2025)
Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f, 10.03.2025)

Campany Secrebary (01.04.30024 to 25.03,2025)
Company Sacratary (w81 26.03.20125)

Diuring the vear, The Comnany entered into the folowing trading transactions wilh relaled panies

Far the Yoar

Far the Year

Endad 21-03:Fndad 311-03
Related party Mature of Transaction 1025 2024
Lommen expenses dorne by Huld iy Cornpeiny 2.90
Davidernd F‘g-!d - =
= r Advance for directer namination fees recenvead -
{a) Esstem Investments Limited Advanse for director nomination leas returnad -
Advance for ETL's director nomination fees deposited =
Advance for EIL's director nomination fees refunded = - :
= : : | Relmbuisement of expenses X 1006
(b1} The Bisre Stone Lime Company Lirited Ghast hiaae Bent Bxpense - .
Salary of Deputed Employees (270.358) 1151.24)
Sale of Materiai and Interast on trade edvance (1,815.23} (8,982.07)
(c) My Rastriya Ispat Nigam Limited Tnter Corporate Loan (Including Enterssk) 17,7 98,58 .
Earnest Money Deposit - {13.897
Rent of AG-104 (Parzd, 2nd Flogr, Salt Leks, Kalkata 34,09 {45 81)
The fulluwing balances were outstnnding at the end of tha raporting pariod
Ambunts
As at 31-03-] As at 31-03-
Relatad party Maturs of balance 2025 2024
{2} Eagtermn Investments Limikad Common Expenses gt Comorate Ofics 9,52 9,52
Old Loap, Hiring Charges, Deputationist Emplyee’s: cues (26.06) (26.06)
(o] The Blsra Stone Lime Company Limited and common expenses at Corparate Offlce : :
[ s Renl oavahle
Rent of AG-104 (part), 2nd Flogr, Salt Lake, Kolkata 24.20 18,81
Trada Advance {Induding Intérast) (21006.58Y] [19191.35)
(c) M/s Rastriya Ispat Nigam Limitd Inkar Corporat® Loan [Including Inberest) 17758.68 0.00
Earmest Money Deposik (13:59) [13.89)
Salary of Depited Emplovess (784 07 {504 73}
35.2 Compenastion of ey Management Persannal pienias
The remuneration of direetess and sthar mambens of kay managemant pereonnel during the year are 25 Aiisuntin Lakia
[ P— x —————
Related party zuzs ZoZ4
Shert-ierm benefits 53,54 375
Fost Employment Denefits E -
Ther Long Lerm Densfts
Share pasad payments
lermination Denents - -
35.3 Loans to related partics
As at 31-03-| Asat 31-03
2025

D24

Loans to key management parponngl




Notes

The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited
to the Financial Statements

36 - Contingant liabilitice

Amount in Rs. Lalkths

Claims against the Company not acknowleged as debt includes:

As at 31-03- As at 31-03-
2025 2024
236.1 Contingent labilities ]
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts;-
(A) |Legal matters :-
a)|5. Panigrahi vs, GMOC 2.50 2.50
By |Nabel Resources Vs, OMBE . 9343
cilIshravatl Rajirhar Vs, OMDE (Civil f Lebour Case pending in MACT/ADM, Keanjhar 1.5 1.75
d}| Money Sult Mo 46/2019 5 K Roy Chowdhury, Arpita Roy Choudhury vs OMDC & others 61039 252.90
&) [Jdi Balaji Industries Ltd CP{IB)No 688/ KB/2020 ({Intersst) 1,672.48 1,608,778
I Eastern India Minerals Limited 3,78,227.00 -
Y NCCF (Award passed under Arbitration) 100.00 100-00
h}|OSL {Claim for Befund of EMD) 153,69 141.00
i)|Visa Steel Limited 15,0£1.00 +
IIOMDEC vs RTO, Keonjhar . | 20.00
{B) |Compensation for Excess Mining {BPMEL LEASES) Certificate Case 32/2018 1,92.938.00 1,80,182.17
{C) |Bank Guarantee to I1BM, DSPCE & Baitarani Irrigation Divisien 332790 1,9%4.81
{B) |Site Rectaimation 3,299.36 1,480,449
(E) |Other Dues [GST,C3T, VAT, OET & Service Tax) 130.27 26.21
(F) |Stamp Duty, Registration Charges for supplementary |2ase deed (Bhadrasal & Belkundi Mining, B,155.90 13,272:49
Laasa)
(G) |Schema CTECTO Site Specifie Wild Life Plan, Ragianal Wid Lifs Dlan and ather Statotary payment 65,99 435 41
(H) |CI5F- Clalm of Risk & Hardshig Allowances G679 56, T4
(I} |Mon-transfer of Unpald Dividend amount to Investor Education Protection Fund {IEFF) which has been lying
meate thian ¥ years 1540 S
{3} [Mon Complionce with SEB {LOBR) Regulotion, 2015 wrt Appointment of Independent Dlrectors (Mot 1168 23.30
appainted by Govt. of India yet and OMBC has Apglied for Exemption| - e
TOTAL 1 6,06,139.93 2,06,025.98

a. Legal Cases constitute Rs. 3997,88.82Lakhs from sl. no. A{a) te (j). Claims of contractors for supply of materials/services
are pending with arbitration/caurts which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. It is expected that the ultimate
outcome of these proceedings will be In favour of the Company and will not have any material adverse offect on the
Company’s financial position and results of operation. The amount shown above are approximate and not crystallizad on the
date of reporting of accounts.

b. OMBEC has challenged the two orders of NCLT dated 10.3.20 before NCLAT, Mew Delhi in the matter of M/s Jal Balafi
Industries Ltd against petition flled u/s 9 of IBC, 2016, The judgement Is in OMDC Favour and the case |8 In farce In Kolkata
High Court.

| €. Qut of the total claim of Odisha Govt. towards demand for BFMEL Leases alongwith with Interest amounting Rs. 1929,38.00
Lakhs have been shown in Si No (B) as the cases are pending in different courts of law,

d. Bank Guarantees s given 1o Indian surcau orf Mines, OSFLE & Baltaran! Lrrigation DIvision RS.3327.90 Laknhs (51 No C)

2. Site Rerlaimation charges of Rs. 3200 26 Lakh is chown in §l. No. (D),

For Demand from various statutory authorities towards Regional wildlife management and income tax, =ales tax, excise duty,
custom duty, service tax, entry tax and Rs.130.27 lakhs respectively as per sl. no. (E) & {F). The Company is contesting the
demand with appellate authorities. It is expected that the ultimate sutcome of these proceedings will be in favour of the
Company and will not have any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operation.

f. Stamp Duty, Registration Charges & other Statutory Payment will be made at the me of cxecuting supplementary Leass
Deed after having all statutory clearances of around R5.6555.12 Lac for all three OMDC Leases as shown in (G) and [H).

g. Pursuant to the amendments of the Orissa Land Reforms Act, the Sub-Collector, Champua had served a Notice against the
Company for alleged unauthorized possession of 10,79 acres of leasehold land on the ground that the said land belongs to
Adivasis and based on that, the Revenue Inspector asked OMDC to vacate the land. The Company filed an appeal before the
Addl. District Magistrate but the appeal was not allowed. During April, 1999 the Company filed a writ application and cbtained
Stay Order from the Hon'ble High Court of Orissa to maintain the status qu{:— ahout the possession of the land until further

order. No specific liability could be ascertained.
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Motes to the Financial Statements

The Orisza Minerals Development Company Limitad

Notes to the Financial Statements

37.1 Disclosure of additional information s required by the Schedule 111
Tha Bagiaburw Iron mines started operating from 14,13.2023, The Company s constantly following up for renewal of mining lesses for
remaining two mines |a. Balkundi & Bhadrasai minaes.

37.2 - Othar Infarmation:

a) There are no dues payabla to Micro and Small Enterprisas as defined in the Micra, Small and Modium Entarprizés Davaloprant Act, 3008
which have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the hasis of information availahle with the Campany.

b} Un-authorized occupation of seme of the quarters has been made by contractor’s employees in mines. Company [s considering to take|
nacessary action including legal course wherever necessary to take the ownership of the guariers,

€} The registration of the Building of the company 2t Kolkata |5 yet t0 be completed. The provision of Rs.B4.03 lakhs has besn made for
registration of building. Hewaver, further payment will be made at the time of Registration as per actual,

d} As por the undorstonding with the employoes, alectricity consumed by Uem in e accommodstion provided to them would be frae of
eact, hanes sy FEEOWRrY is not mada fram amplayees.

T
5": =



THE ORIS5A MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notos to the Financial Statements

38.1 Ratlos:-
Ratias Numerator Cenominator Asat 31-03-2025 | Asat 31-03-2024 | % Vardance |  Reasan for variance
Currant eatio Current Acsels Larrwni Liahilibies 0.a35 o B a9
Dabt-eguity ratio Total Long werm dobkf Sharehoides's Equity {3a5) 13.45)
[ImCiuding cunrent maturlty)
| bt service coverage ratio | Earning Before interest & Tax |interest on Long Term L6l 0.83 01,94
debt + Principal
repayment of long term
dabt
Return om equity ratio Mot Profit alter Tax Avergge  Shareholder's 1:3% (0.18) 149
Equity
Inventory turmover ratio Cost ef Goods Sold Average Invantony 10.16) {0.09) 10.07}
Trade receivables turnover|Mat Credit Sales AV, Accounts| - E
ratia Feceivable |
Trade payables turnower ratla |Net Credit Payahle AR Accounts Pavable 0,90 n.40 0,50
Mot eapital turnaver ratio Hal Salas Warking Cagpltal (0.1 ?i (8,27 010
ket prafit ratio Mot Profit Poiet Gabes (0.G8) [L06] (062
Return on cepltal employed  |Eaning Before inferest & 1ax  |Capital Employed [0:21] [2.38] 1%
Return aon investment Time  Weighted  Value  of Time Weighted Value of 10.14) TG {0.14)
Feturn on Investment Inwestment




THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

Disclosure of any transactions with struck off Companics

. ; Relationship with the
Mature of transaction with Buuwele-off Palance S
Name of Struek off Compeny Struck off company, if
MRS b edt any, to bi disclosad
Investment in Securities il
Kerrivahles Wil
Payables Wil
Share held by stuek off company Nil
Other Outstanding Balance (fo be
specified) il

Ju



Motes to Accounts
33.3 LEASE STATUS
OMDC LEASES :

1. Bagiaburu lron Ore Mines (21.52 Ha.)

THE ORISSA MINERALS DEYELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Description

Status

Resarve [In Millian Tonnes)

Iron- 4.08

Capacity[EC granted) Iron- 0,36 Million Tonnes per Annum
Mining Lease # Suppfementary lease deed executed on 06.07.2022 for the period from 11102071 1o
10,10.2041,
wrorest Clearance granted by MoEFSCC, Integrated Regional office, Bhubaneswar on 17.00.7021
for total forect area aof 2157 hacte, and valid up to 10103041
Farest Clearance(FC)
Environment Clearance(EC) ¥ EC granted on 14.07.2023 by WoEF & CC , Mew Dethi and valid up to 13072034
Mining Plan ¥ Mining Plan apgreved by |BM on 22.07,2021 andvalid up 1o 31,03.2026,

Consent to Establish|CTE)

+ Conzent to Estaldish (CTE) granted by SPCR, Cdisha on 15122020 and valld Up to 18,12.2025,

Consent to Operate{CTO)

= Consent to Operate [CTO) gradted by SPCE, Ddisha on 30.03.2025 and valid up to 81.02.2076

Active resumption of minin& operation

#14.12,2023

Z. Bhadrasahi Iron & Manganasa Ore Mines {998.70 Ha.)

Diserbyitban

Status

Resecve {in Milllon Tonnes)

iron- ¥7.08, Manpanesa- 12,17

Capacity(EC applied)

Irom- 1.8 Million Tonnes per Annum, Mn- 0,12 Millicn Tonnas per Annum

Mining Lease extension

¥ Govt.of Odisha vide order dated 06,02, 2000 extended the mining leaze validity period from
0110, 4110 1o 30:09. 2030

Forest E'Il:.‘lr:nr_nEFE}

= OMDC piid e 78,41 era to DRREA CAMPA Fund on 27.02.2025 towards balance NPV,

¥ OMDC vide letter dated 28.02.2025 requested DFQ; Keonjhas for facilitating grant of axtension to
FC co-terminus with ML,

# DR, Keanjhar vide etter dated 24.03.2025 forwarded the same to RECF, Rourkela,

» RCCF, Bourkela vide lelter dated 10.03. 2035 farwardod tho sama ta Addl. BECE far grant of FC

M vposzl s pending with Addl Chiel Seootery o Gove. of Odisha, Depamument af Foresy
Envirenment & Climata Change.

Environment Clearance[EC) # Public Hearing (FH| scheduled to be held on 26.03.2025 was oostpaned by Collector, Kecnihar
vide letter dated 25.03,2025 mentioning thal "there is grumbiing among the villagers against the
company which may lead £o law and order situation.

Mining Plan * MWening was approved by 1BM on 24.02.3025 and vaiid up te 21032030,

Consem b Catablish{CTE)

# Application Tor CTE will be submmilbed after tescheduling of FH

3. Belkundi Iron & Manganese Ore Mines (1276.79 Ha.)

Description Status
Aeservelln Million Tonnes) trom- 15,93, Manganese- 11,73
Capacity{EC applied) Iran- 1.B Milllon Toanes per Annum, Mn- 0.30 Million Tonnes per Annum

Mining Lease extension

# Govt. of Odisha vide arder dated 03.04.2020 extended the mining lease validily peried frorm
16.068.2006 to 15.08,2028,

Forastry Clearance(FC)

Enwireniment Clearance{C)

# Forost Clearaace ep-torminus svtenclan of Rolkundi mines has hean granted by MaEF L CC Naw
Dethion 14002022 and valid up ta 15,083, 3036

# The Pubdic Hearing which was scheduled twioe earlien oooe o 16.006.2025 and again 5T

A2 AUES, Was ostponed oy the ofmce of Lollector & LISIrcl Maglstrale, Keonjhar,

¥ Date and venue for conducting Public Hearing [PH} iz awaited from Collactar, Esonihar.

Mining Plan

# Mining Plan approved by {BM on 29.01 2021 and yalid up te 31 03,2038,

Consent to Establish{CTE]

¥ Presentation made before SPCB, Odisha on 25.02.2021 lgr obtalning CTE.
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EPMEL LEASES :

DMBE HAD BEEN OPERTING BFMEL LEASES BY VIRTUE OF POWER OF ATTORNEY. MINING RIGHTS OF BPMEL LEASES ARE
SUBJUDICE. THE STATUS OF BPMEL LEASES ARE AS FOLLOWS :-

1. Holha-Roida Iron & Manganese Ore Mines (254.952 Ha,)

Deseription

tatus

Renewal of Mining Laase

The 3rd RML application (15.08.1996 to 14.08.2016] was rejecced by Gave. of Cdisha on 1611200k

Dzte af Evpiry of 3" AML / Data of fling of 3 RML
Application

14 081006 / 14.07.100C

Mines operated up to (under Deemed Renewal)

16113006

Environment Clearance|EC)

EC was obtained on 23.07.2012 for 3 MTPA Iron ore & 0,24 MTPA Ma NgAness ore,

Forest Clearance|FC)

Mot Avallakle

Approved Mining Plan

Not avallable

Cansant to Establish (CTE)

Mol avdllable

Consant to Operate [CTO)

Mot available

Z, Dalki Manganess Ore Mines (266.77 Ha.)

Deetriptinn

Status

Renawal of Mining Loaso

The Jrd fbL application (01,10, 1954 10 30,05, 2014) was vejected by Govl of Odisha on 24.08.2008,

Date of Expiry of 2™ fML / Date of filing @™ RWIL
Application

J0.05, 15994/ 05.09.2013

Mings operated up to [under Deemed Renewal) 24.08.2008
Environment Clearance{EC) EC wias ubtained om 11.09:2013 for 0,24 MTPA Manganess ore
Forest Clearance([FC) hot avallable

Approved Mining Plan

Mot avallable

Consent to Establish (CTE)

Mot avillabie

Consent to Operate (CTO)

Mot avallable

Description

Skatue

Renewal of Mining Lease

Jre RMIL from 01, 20,2004 wo 30.09.2024 |s pending,

Date of Expiry of 2™ RML / Date of filing of 3" RML

30.09.2004 f L¥.09, 2003

Application
Mines pperated up to {under Deemed Renewal] (0912 7008
Ervironment Clearance({EC) Not available

Forest Clearanca(FC)

Nat available

Appraved Mining Plan

Not available

Consent to Establish (CTE]

hot availablp

Caneant ta Dparate (CTO)

Met available




A DETAILED NOTE ON BPMEL CASES BFORE SUPREME COURT OF INDIA

1, Challenging the order dated 03.02. 2020 passed by the Division Bench, High Court, Caleutta to form a High Power Committes ta take @ decision for
resumption of mining speration, the Chief Secratary, Govi. of Odishe (an behalf of Stew| B Mines Bept.) had filed SLP [Civil) No. 007315 - 7316/2021 before
the Hon'ble Suprems Court of Indfa chalienging theorder passed on 03.03.2020 n ACO Mo 242019 & APO No, 196/2009 by the divisien biench of the High
Court, Cafcutta , QMDC 15 made o party o the above SLP(C) being respondent no. 4 along with other respondents viz, Bharat Process & Maechanical Enginsers
Limited [BFMEL), TPG Equity Management Pyi. Lid. {TPGEMPL), Official Lguidator (BPMEL), and Usion of India (Minmstey of Heavy Industriss),

JUDGMENT PASSED BY SLIPREME COLIRT OF INDIA:

2. The Han'kle Supreme Court of india hearing the partles to the proceeding, pronounced the judgrment on 17.05.2024 in the above noted SLP {Civil) No,
O073E5 - TILE20R1,

o, The apex court allowed the appeal fed by Chiel Secretary, Govl. of Qdisha and sel-aside the order dated 03.03. 2020 passed by the divisian bench of the

Hlﬂh Court at Calcutta in which direction was made to constitute a High Powered Commities to consider the fsus of revival.of thees mines of BRMEL and ta
hear the prayer af TPGEMPL.

B, The Hon'ble Apex Court in the said judement also upheld the judement & order of the High Court of Orissa passed in writ petition no. 1857 of 2010 relecting
1he request of OMDC & TPG for renewal of Kolha-Roida lease, ignoring the tact that the Revlew petitlans filed by GMDC bafore High Court. Orissa are still
pending for adjudication,

c. The Hon'bla Supréme Cour by the sakd judgment ulao clariflied that the oppllcations filed and

IMPLICATION OF THE JURDGMENT OF HON'BLE SUPREME COURT BTE. 17.05.2024

3 The effect of the Judgment of Sugremie Court is that,

i, The QDT Ts deprived of all its rights on BFMEL mines and the entire infrastructure created By OMOC in the ieasehold area of the thres mines under the
neminal swnership of the BPMEL will be at stake,

b. Govt. of Odisha will be well within its rights to take cosrrive steps tn evict The DBMOC Ltd. 2510 will be treated a6 unsuthorized ocoupant in the aye of Law

4. The contention af QMOC is that, the arders of the Sppremea Court of Indla under reference hus been passed without taking into account the historical dghts
of The OMEC Ltd. over the Mines and has ertoneausly concluded that the Mines are owned by the BPMEL which ks under liquidation, But the fact is that since
inception; the OMDC was operating these mines and the Bird & Co. LLd., the Govt. of India et wers only trusiees [ Benamidass. The louidstion of a trustes
normally should not affect the eights of the original owner

STEPS TAKEN FOLLOWERD BY SC JUDGMENT

5. Considering the impact the judgment will have an OMDOC, 3 Review Patition being Diary Mo, - 208062014 filed by OMOC befora tha Suproma Dourt an
OE.07.2024, for roviaw of tha Judgmaent datad 1705 3034 it is infarmed by the dharchaldar of DAOEC thot, 2 Bewiew Pazition halng Diary Ma, - 20537/90414 i
alzo filed cr 08.07.2024 by one shercholder before the Suprems Codrt for review T the Judgment dated 17.05.2024. Bull Ui revlew petitions are pending fu
hesting.




THE ORISSA MINERALS DEYELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

39, The accounts have been prepered on Gaing Concern Rasis. Tha Baglabicn Tran Mincs ctarked sparating feam 14139093 The
Company is constantly following up for ranawal of mining leases for remaining two mines |.e. Belhundi and Bhadrasai Mines.

40. Confirmation of balances in respact of advances, receluables ote. ara sonk on qubrtery bosis ond annually. The sffect of any
adjustmant, as may be required, on reconcifiation with the confirmation of the parties will be done in future years, after receipt of|
confirmation.

41. The effoctiva data for adoption of Ind-AS 118 is apnual pariod beginning on or after April 1, 2019, From the classification of]
applicabliity, in respect of OMDC, Ind-AS 116 can nat ha made applicable.

42, Frevious year's figures hava baen re-grouged and rearranged whorsver nocesanry ta canfirm £a bhie vear's classification.

Fur & Gn Behalf of Board of Directors
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